Jo—y

10.

11.

12.

13.

GREEN BAY/BROWN COUNTY
PROFESSIONAL FOOTBALL STADIUM DISTRICT
AGENDA
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 22, 2025
2:00 P.M.

Lambeau Field Atrium — MVP Box 4039
1265 Lombardi Avenue
Enter American Family Insurance Gate - Follow Signs to 4th Level

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89288902881

By phone: 312-626-6799, meeting ID 892 8890 2881
Call the Meeting to Order
Roll Call
Pledge of Allegiance
Approve/Modify Agenda
Election of Officers — Bylaws

Request for Approval of the Minutes — June 23, 2025

Communications:
. Packers Financials — Shareholders’ Meeting
) Late Communications (if any)

Annual Audit — Presented by CliftonLarsonAllen

Special Events & Economic Development Fund Update:

. Detail of Special Events and Economic Development Fund

. Post Event Reports:
- Duck Creek Triathlon
- USHL Combines
- YMCA Gymnastics
) Discover Green Bay Request for Funding - USA Hockey Nationals 2026
Financial Reports — June, July, August 2025
Director’s Report

Other Matters Authorized by Law

Motion to Adjourn

If you need assistance, please contact Diane Roskom at 920-983-1699




BYLAWS
OF

GREEN BAY/BROWN COUNTY PROFESSIONAL
FOOTBALL STADIUM DISTRICT '

(as amended October 9, 2001)

ARTICLEI
PURPOSE AND POWER

The Green Bay/Brown County Professional Football Stadium District (the “District”) is
created as a special district authorized under Subchapter IV of Chapter 229 of the Wisconsin
Statutes (the “Act”), pursuant to which the legislature of the State of Wisconsin has determined
that such a district serves a public purpose by providing recreation, by encouraging economic
development and tourism, by reducing unemployment and by bringing needed capital into
Brown County, Wisconsin. The jurisdiction of the District shall be Brown County (the
“Jurisdictional Area”). The District is a local governmental unit, that is a body corporate and
politic and that is separate and distinct from and independent of the State of Wisconsin, Brown
County and all local governmental units falling within the Jurisdictional Area. The District shall
have all of the powers set forth in § 229.824 of the Wisconsin Statutes and shall be subject to the
provisions of the Act. As a governmental body, the District shall comply with all applicable
provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes and regulations promulgated thereunder, including, without
limitation, the provisions of Chapter 19 of the Wisconsin Statutes, as they may relate to th
District, its directors, officers and employees. ' :

ARTICLE I
OFFICES

The District’s principal office in the State of Wisconsin shall be located in Brown
County.

ARTICLE I
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

3.01 General Powers.

The business and affairs of the District shall be overseen by its Board of Directors.




3.02 Number.

The number of directors of the District shall be seven (7) who shall be appointed as set
forth in Section 3.03.

3.03 Manner of Selection; Tenure.
The directors shall be individuals qualified and appointed as follows:

(a)  Three (3) directors shall be appointed by and serve at the pleasure of the
chief elected official of the City of Green Bay. Each such director appointed under subparagraph
(a) shall take his or her seat immediately on appointment, subject to confirmation or rejection by
a majority of the members-elect of the Common Council.

(b)  Three (3) directors shall be appointed by and serve at the pleasure of the
chief executive of Brown County and shall be subject to confirmation or rejection by a majority
of the members-elect of the Brown County Board.

(c)  One (1) director shall be appointed by and serve at the pleasure of the
Village President of the Village of Ashwaubenon and shall be subject to confirmation or
rejection by a majority of the members-elect of the Board of the Village of Ashwaubenon.

: (d)  The terms of office of the persons appointed as Directors shall be two (2)
years expiring on July 1, except that the initial terms shall expire on the fourth year beginning
after the creation of the District.

()  Vacancies shall be filled by the appointing authority who appointed the
person whose office is vacant. A person appointed to fill a vacancy shall serve for the remainder
of the unexpired term to which he or she was appointed, unless removed at an earlier time.

3.04 Annual Meeting and Regular Meetings.

The Annual Meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held on a date during September
of each year and at a time and place, as may be determined by the Chairperson or by resolution
of the Board of Directors. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at such times
and places fixed by the Chairperson of the Board of Directors.

3.05 Special Meetings.

Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by or at the request of the
Chairperson or the Vice Chairperson, in the absence of the Chairperson. Special meetings may
also be called upon request of a majority of the directors. The person or persons authorized to
call special meetings of the Board of Directors may fix the time and place for holding any special
meeting of the Board of Directors called by them. If no place is fixed by the person calling the
meeting, the place of meeting shall be the District’s principal office in the Jurisdictional Area.

5=




3.06 Participation in Meetings by Electronic Means of Communication.

To the extent provided by these Bylaws, the Board of Directors, or any committee of the
Board, may, in addition to conducting meetings in which each director participates in person, and
notwithstanding any place set forth in the notice of the meeting or these Bylaws, conduct any
annual, regular or special meeting by the use of any electronic means of communication,
provided (1) all participating directors may simultaneously hear each other during the meeting,
and/or (2) all communication during the meeting is immediately transmitted to each participating
director, and each participating director is able to immediately send messages to all other
participating directors; (3) and all requirements of the Open Meetings Law are met. A director
participating in a meeting by any means pursuant to this Section 3.06, shall be deemed to be

present in person at the meeting.

3.07 Notice.

Notice of any regular or special meeting shall be given by written notice delivered
personally or by mail, to each director at his or her business address or by facsimile transmission
to such director at his or her facsimile number, or at such other address or number as such
director shall have designated in writing and filed at the District’s principal office. Such notice
shall normally be given at least three (3) days prior to a regular meeting and in no case less than
twenty-four (24) hours prior to a meeting. In the case of an emergency, notice to Directors shall
be given at least two (2) hours before a meeting.

Public notice of all meetings shall be given if and as required and provided in Chapter 19,
Wisconsin Statutes. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the
United States mail so addressed, with postage thereon prepaid. If notice is given by electronic
mail, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when the sender transmits the message. If
notice is given by facsimile transmission, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when the
sender receives in-hand a confirmation sheet indicating that the transmission is complete.
Whenever any notice is required to be given to any director of the District under the provisions
of these Bylaws or under the provisions of any statute, a waiver thereof in writing, signed at any
time, whether before or after the time of the meeting, by the director entitled to such notice, shall
be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice. The attendance of a director at a meeting
shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except where a director attends a meeting and
objects because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.

3.08 Quorum.

A majority of the number of directors then in office shall constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business at any meeting of the Board of Directors.




DRAFT REVISIONS TO SECTION 3.09 OF BYLAWS
(Revisions in Boldface Italics)

3.09 Manner of Acting and Reconsideration.

(@)  Except as otherwise specified by law or these Bylaws, the affirmative vote or
approval of a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present, shall be
the act of the Board of Directors, [or of a committee of the Board of Directors in the case of a
committee meeting.] The voting on all matters presented for a vote shall be by voice vote, unless
a director requests a roll call, or if roll call vote is required by law, in which case the Yeas and
Nays shall be entered upon the minutes of the meeting, All resolutions or votes of the Board of
Directors shall be entered in full in the minutes of the meeting or otherwise reduced to writing.

(b)  The affirmative vote or approval of the majority of Directors then in office shall
be required for the Board of Directors, (1) to enter into any lease or contract under §229.824(4)
and §229.827, Wis. Stats., (2) to issue bonds under §229 of the Wisconsin Statutes and (3) to
levy taxes as provided in §229.824(8) of the Wisconsin Statutes.

(© It shall be in order for any member voting on the prevailing side to move for a
reconsideration of the vote on any question on the same day or to give written notice to the
Executive Director within __ days of his/her intent to move for reconsideration at the next
regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors. If notice is not given in this manner, the
matter shall not be subject to reconsideration. A motion for reconsideration shall not be
accepted by the Chairperson unless it can be determined that the person making the motion
had voted on the prevailing side. Any motion for consideration must be adopted by a majority

of the members present.




3.10 Presumption of Assent.

A director of the District who is present at a meeting of the Board of Directors or a
committee thereof at which action on any District matter is taken shall be presumed to have
assented the action taken unless the director’s dissent shall be entered in the minutes of the
meeting. The right of dissent or abstention is not available to a director who votes in favor of the

action taken.
3.11 Conduct of Meetings.

The Chairperson, and in his or her absence the Vice Chairperson, and in their absence,
any director chosen by the directors then present, shall call meetings of the Board of Directors to
order and shall act as chairperson of the meeting. The Secretary shall act as secretary of all
meetings of the Board of Directors, but in the absence of the Secretary, the presiding officer may
appoint any director or other person to act as secretary of the meeting. Except as otherwise
provided or contemplated herein, at the request of the Chairperson or any two (2) directors
present, a meeting shall generally be conducted by Robert’s Rules of Order as revised from time
to time or in an orderly manner as determined by the Chairperson.

3.12 Removal.

Any director may be removed from office before the expiration of his or her term only by
the person authorized under Section 3.03 to appoint the director or as otherwise provided by the

law.
3.13 Vacancies.

Any vacancy occurring on the Board of Directors shall be filled by the person, board or
council authorized under Section 3.03 to appoint the director whose office is vacant. Any person
appointed to fill a vacancy on the Board of Directors shall serve for the remainder of the term of

the person who left office as a director.

3.14 Committees.

(a) Generally. The Board of Directors by resolution adopted by the
affirmative vote of the majority of the directors then in office may designate one or more
committees and may thereafter discontinue any such committees. Each such committee shall
consist of three (3) or more directors who shall be appointed by the Chairperson unless otherwise
provided for in the resolution creating the committee. Unless otherwise provided by the enabling
resolution or herein, each committee shall have a chairperson. Each committee member shall
serve a one (1) year term or until his or her successor is appointed by the Chairperson of the
Board of Directors (or by the manner set forth in the enabling resolution) or until such committee
member shall resign. Each committee shall be responsible to the Board of Directors, but shall fix
its own rules governing the conduct of its activities and shall make such reports to the Board of

59




Directors of the committee’s activities as the Board of Directors may request. Each committee,
to the extent provided in the enabling resolution as may be amended or supplemented from time
to time by further resolution adopted by like vote, shall have and may exercise, when the Board
of Directors is not in session, the powers of the Board of Directors in the oversight of the
business and affairs of the District, except action in respect of election of principal officers of the
District and in filling vacancies in committees created pursuant to this Section 3.14. All actions
of committees are subject to Board approval. Unless otherwise provided in the enabling
resolution, the Chairperson of the Board of Directors may appoint or the Board of Directors may
elect one or more alternate members of any such committee, upon request of the Chairperson or
upon request of the chairperson of the committee.

(b)  Special Committees. Special Committees may be appointed by the
Chairperson or the Board of Directors to perform such duties and have such authority as may be

assigned to them by the Board of Directors.

3.15 Compensation; Expenses.

Directors shall receive no salaries for their services, but they shall be entitled to
reimbursement for their actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their

duties.
3.16 Effect of Resolutions.

- (a) Severability. Unless otherwise expressly provided, if any one or more of
the provisions of any resolution of the Board of Directors should be determined by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, then such provision or provisions shall be deemed
and construed to be severable from the remaining provisions therein contained and shall in no
way affect the validity of the other provisions of such resolution.

(b)  Headings. Any heading preceding the texts of the several articles and
sections of any resolution of the Board of Directors, and any table of contents or marginal notes
appended thereof, shall be solely for convenience of reference and shall not constitute a part of
any such resolution, nor shall they affect its meaning, construction or effect.

(c)  Effective Date. Unless otherwise provided, each resolution of the Board
of Directors shall take effect immediately upon its adoption in the manner provided by law.

(d)  Priority. Unless otherwise expressly provided, each resolution of the
Board of Directors shall be deemed to rescind and repeal all prior resolutions, rules or other
actions, or part thereof, of the Board of Directors in conflict with such subsequent resolution
insofar (and only insofar) as such conflict arises. This provision shall not apply to conflicts
between resolutions and Bylaws of the District. -

(¢)  No Recourse Under Resolutions. All covenants, stipulations, promises,
agreements, and obligations of the District contained in any resolution of the Board of Directors

gt




shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the
District and not of any director, officer or employee of the District in his or her individual
capacity, and no recourse shall be had for any claim based on any resolution of the Board of
Directors against any director, officer or employee of the District.

® District Complete. The officers, attorneys, agents, and/or employees of
the District shall be automatically authorized to do all acts and things required of them by any
resolution of the Board of Directors for the full, punctual and complete performance of all of the

provisions of such resolutions.

ARTICLE IV

OFFICERS

4.01 Designation.

The principal officers of the District shall be a Chairperson, a Vice Chairperson, a
" Secretary and Treasurer. The District Board shall elect such officers from its members. Such
other officers and assistant officers as may be deemed necessary may be elected or appointed by

the Board of Directors.

4.02 Term of Office.

The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary and Treasurer (the “Elected Officers”) shall be
elected by the Board of Directors at the Annual Meeting of the Board of Directors or at such
other time as determined by the Board. If the election of such officers shall not be held at such
meeting, such election shall be held as soon thereafter as it may be convenient. Each officer shall
hold office for a term of one (1) year, commencing on the day of his or her election, or until his
or her successor shall have been duly elected and shall have qualified, or until his or her death or
resignation or until he or she shall have been removed from office in the manner hereinafter

indicated.

4,03 Removal.

Any officer or agent elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed by
the Board of Directors whenever in its judgment the District’s best interests will be served

thereby.

4.04 Vacancies.

A vacancy in any principal office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification
or otherwise, shall be filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion of the term.

4.05 Chairperson.

<N




The Chairperson shall be the District’s principal executive, officer and, subject to the
control of the Board of Directors, shall in general supervise all of the business and affairs of the
District. The Chairperson shall, when present, preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors.
The Chaitperson shall have the authority, either alone, with another officer or through his
designee, to sign, execute and acknowledge, on behalf of the District, all deeds, mortgages,
bonds, contracts and other documents or instruments which are necessary or proper in the regular
course of the District’s business or which may be authorized by the Board of Directors, except in
cases where the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Board of
Directors or by the Bylaws to some other officer or agent of the District, or shall be required by
law to be otherwise signed or executed. The Chairperson shall in general perform all duties
incidental to the office of the Chairperson and such other duties as may be prescribed by the
Board of Directors from time to time. The Chairperson shall be an ex-officio member of all of
the District’s committees. In the absence of actual knowledge by third parties to the contrary, the
execution of an instrument of the District by the Chairperson shall be conclusive evidence, as to
such third parties, of his or her authority to execute the instrument on behalf of the District.

4.06 Vice Chairperson.

In the absence of the Chairperson or in the event of the Chairperson’s death or inability or
refusal to act as directed by the Board of Directors, the Vice Chairperson, shall perform the
duties of the Chairperson, and when so acting shall have all the powers of and be subject to all
the restrictions upon the Chairperson. The Vice Chairperson may sign, with the Secretary, bonds
or notes of the District and shall perform all other duties as from time to time may be assigned by
the Chairperson and/or the Board of Directors. In the absence of actual knowledge by third
parties to the contrary, the execution of any instrument of the District by the Vice Chairperson
shall be conclusive evidence, as to such third parties, of his or her authority to act in the stead of

the Chairperson.




4.07 The Secretary.

The Secretary shall: (a) keep or appoint someone to keep the minutes of the meetings of
the Board of Directors in one or more books provided for that purpose; (b) see that all notices are
duly given in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws or as required by law; (c) designate
the Executive Director custodian of the District’s records and see that books, reports, statements,
certificates and all other documents and records required by law are properly kept and filed; (d)
keep a register of the post office address of each director and each officer, which shall be
furnished to the Secretary by each such person; () sign with the Chairperson and/or Vice
Chairperson, bonds, notes, agreements, deed, instruments, certificates, and other documents of
the District which shall have been authorized by resolution of the Board of Directors; and (f) in
general perform all duties incident to the office of the Secretary and such other duties as from
time to time may be assigned to him or her by the Chairperson and/or the Board of Directors.

4.08 The Treasurer.

The Treasurer or his or her designee shall: (a) have charge and custody of and be
responsible for all of the District’s funds and securities; (b) receive and give receipts for money
due and payable to the District from any source whatsoever, and deposit all funds of the District
in such banks, trust, companies or other depositories as shall be selected in accordance with the
provisions of these Bylaws; and (c) in general perform all of the duties incidental to the office of
Treasurer and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him or her by the
Chairperson and/or the Board of Directors. If required by the Board of Directors, the Treasurer
shall give a bond for the faithful discharge of his or her duties in such sum and with such surety
or sureties as the Board of Directors shall determine.

4.09 Assistant Secretaries and Assistant Treasurers.

The Board of Directors may authorize one or more Assistant Secretaries and/or Assistant
Treasurers from time to time. Any such Assistant Secretary may sign with the Chairperson or
Vice Chairperson debt securities of the District, the issuance of which shall have been authorized
by a resolution of the Board of Directors. The Assistant Treasurers, if required by the Board of
Directors, shall give bonds for the faithful discharge of their duties in such sums and with such
sureties as the Board of Directors shall determine. The Assistant Secretaries and Assistant
Treasurers, in general, shall perform such duties as shall be assigned to them by the Secretary or
the Treasurer, respectively, or by the Chaitperson or the Board of Directors.

4.10 Executive Director

The Executive Director shall have the powers, duties and responsibilities as are set forth
in the approved job description and as may be assigned to the Executive Director from time to

time by the District, Board or Chairman.




4.11 Other Personnel.

The District may, from time to time, appoint and employ such personnel as may be
deemed necessary to exercise the powers, duties and functions of the District or the District’s
officers. The qualifications, duties and numbers of such personnel shall be consistent with the
policies determined by the Board of Directors or the Executive Director.

4.12 Salaries.

Officers shall receive no salaries for their services, but they shall be entitled to
reimbursement for their actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their

duties.’

ARTICLE V

CONTRACTS, LOANS, CHECKS AND DEPOSITS

5.01 Contracts.

The Board of Directors may authorize any officer or officers and/or employees, to enter
into any contract, or to execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the
District, and such authorization may be general or confined to specific instances. The Executive
Director shall have the authority to enter into any contract or to deliver any instrument in the
name and on behalf of the District with respect to any approved budgetary item or as may be
granted by the Board for other specific items from time to time.

5.02 Loans.

No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the District and no evidence of indebtedness
shall be issued in its name unless authorized by or under the authority of a resolution of the
Board of Directors. Such authorization may be general or confined to specific instances.

5.03 Checks, Drafts, Etc.

All checks, drafts or other orders for the payment of money, notes or other evidence of

indebtedness issued in the name of the District, shall be signed by such officer or officers, agent -

or agents, of the District and in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by or
under the authority of a resolution of the Board of Directors.

5.04 Deposits.

All funds of the District not otherwise employed shall be deposited from time to time to
the credit of the District in such banks, trusts companies or other depositories as may be selected

by or under the authority of the Board of Directors.

10

5210




5.05 Regulations with Respect to Evidence of Indebtedness.

The Board of Directors shall have the power and authority to make all such rules and
regulations not inconsistent with the statutes of the State of Wisconsin as it may deem expedient
concerning the issue, transfer and registration of evidence of indebtedness of the District.

ARTICLE VI
INDEMNIFICATION

6.01 Mandatory Indemnification.

(a)  Successful on the Merits. The District shall indemnify a director, officer
or employee of the District to the extent he or she has been successful on the merits or otherwise
in the defense of a proceeding, for all reasonable expenses incurred in the proceeding, if the
director or officer was a party because he or she is or was at the time of the events upon which
the proceeding was based a director or officer of the District. A director or officer shall exercise
his or her right to indemnification under this Section 6.01 by delivering a written demand for
indemnification to the District’s Treasurer, or the Chairperson if the party seeking
indemnification is the Treasurer.

(b)  Good Faith. In all cases not included in Section 6.01, the District shall
indemnify a director or officer against liability incurred by the director or officer in a proceeding
to which the director or officer was a party because he or she is or was at the time of the events
upon which the proceeding was based a director or officer of the District, provided that there is a
determination that the director or officer acted in good faith and in a manner he or she reasonably
believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the District and provided that such act or
omission by the director does not constitute a violation of the criminal law, unless a director or
officer had reasonable cause to believe that his or her conduct was lawful or had no reasonable
cause to believe his or her conduct was unlawful, Whether a director or officer of the District
shall be entitled to indemnification under this Section 6.01(b) shall be determined in accordance

with the procedures established in Section 6.02

(c)  No Presumption. The termination of a proceeding by judgment, order,
settlement or conviction, or upon a plea of no contest or an equivalent plea, does not, by itself,
create a presumption that indemnification of the director or officer is not required under this

subsection.
6.02 Determination of Right to Indemnification.

A director or officer seeking indemnification under this Article VI shall first make a
written request to the District’s Treasurer, or the District’s Chairperson if the person seeking
indemnification is the Treasurer, for such indemnification. Determination of whether
indemnification is required shall be made by one of the following means:

11

-1/




(a) By a majority vote of a quorum of the Board of Directors consisting of
directors who are not at the time parties to the same or related proceedings with respect to which
the indemnification claim has been made. If such quorum of disinterested directors cannot be
obtained, by a majority vote of a committee duly appointed by the Board of Directors and
consisting solely of three (3) or more directors who are not at the time parties to the same or
related proceedings. Directors who are parties to the same or related proceedmgs may participate
in the designation of members of the committee.

(b) By independent legal counsel selected by a majority vote of a quorum of
the Board of Directors or its committee consisting of directors who are not at the time parties to
the same or related proceedings, or, if such a quorum cannot be obtained, by a majority vote of
the full Board of Directors, including directors who are parties to the same or related

proceedings.

(c) By a panel of three (3) arbitrators consisting of one (1) arbitrator selected
by those directors entitled under subsection (b) above to select independent legal counsel, one (1)
arbitrator selected by another director or officer seeking indemnification, and one (1) arbitrator

selected by the other two (2) arbitrators.

(d By a court of competent jurisdiction upon application by the director or
officer for an initial determination of entitlement to indemnification or for review by the court of
an adverse determination. Indemnification shall be ordered if the court determines that the
director or officer is entitled to indemnification under Section 6.01 or that the director or officer
is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnification by order of the court, in addition to
indemnification against all other expenses and liability, the director or officer shall be
reimbursed for expenses reasonably incurred in pursuing his or her request for indemnification.

The director or officer of the District seeking indemnification shall designate his
or her request for indemnification the method of making the indemnification determination.

6.03 Advance of Expenses as Incurred.

The District may, upon written request by the director or officer, pay for or reimburse the
reasonable expenses incurred by a director or officer who is a party to the proceeding, as those
expenses are incurred, if the director or officer furnishes the District with a written affirmation of
his or her good faith belief that he or she has not breached his or her duties to the District, and
the director or officer furnishes the District with a written undertaking, executed personally or on
his or her behalf, to repay the allowance to the extent that it is ultimately determined that the
indemnification is not required. The District may accept the undertaking without reference to his
or her ability to repay the allowance, and the undertaking may be secured or unsecured.

6.04 Insurance.

The District shall purchase or provide insurance on behalf of its directors and officers, or
to reimburse itself, against liability asserted or incurred and expenses incurred by the director or

12




officer in connection with a proceeding brought against the director or officer in his or her
capacity as director or officer or arising from his or her status as a director or officer, regardless
of whether the District is required or authorized to indemnify the individual against the same
liability pursuant to the provisions hereof.

6.05 Definitions.
The following terms used in this Article VI shall have the indicated meanings:

(@  “Director” or “officer” means an individual who is or was a director or
officer of the District and includes the estate or personal representatives of a director or officer.

(b)  “Expenses” includes all fees, costs, charges, attorneys’ fees, and other
expenses and disbursements incurred in connection with a proceeding.

(¢)  “Liability” includes the obligation to pay a judgment, settlement, penalty,
fine, assessrhent or forfeiture, including an excise tax assessed with respect to or on an employee
benefit plan, and reasonable expense.

(d)  “Party” includes an individual who was or is, or who is threatened to be
made, or is at risk of becoming, a named defendant or respondent in a proceeding.

(e)  “Proceeding” means any threatened, pending or completed action, suit,
claim, litigation, appeal, arbitration or other proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative,
or investigative, formal or informal, predicated on foreign, federal, state or local law, brought by
or in the right of the District or by any other person or by any governmental or administrative

body.
6.06 Savings Clause.

To the extent any court of competent jurisdiction shall determine that the indemnification
provided under this Article VI shall be invalid as applied to a particular claim, issue or matter,
the provisions hereof shall be deemed amended to allow and require indemnification to the

maximum extent permitted by law.
ARTICLE VII
AMENDMENTS

7.01 Express Amendments.

The Board of Directors my from time to time, by vote of a majority of the directors then
in office, alter, amend or repeal any and all of the Bylaws of this District.

13 —
5-/4




7.92 Implied Amendments.

Any action taken or authorized by the Board of Directors which would be inconsistent
with the Bylaws then in effect, but which is taken or authorized by affirmative vote of not less
than the number of directors required to amend the Bylaws so that the Bylaws would be
consistent with such action, shall be given the same effect as though the Bylaws had been

' temporarily amended or suspended as far, but only as far, as is necessary to permit the specific
action so taken or authorized.

ARTICLE vVIII
SEAL

The Board of Directors may, by resolution, adopt a seal for the District.

GB72799_1.DOC

14

77




GREEN BAY/BROWN COUNTY PROFESSIONAL FOOTBALL STADIUM DISTRICT

Pursuant to Section 19.84, Wis. Stats., a meeting of the Green Bay/Brown County Professional Football
Stadium District Board was held on Monday, June 23, 2025, at 2:00 p.m.

PRESENT: Leah Weycker, Keith Lucius, Sen. Cowles, Terrance Bouressa, David Charles, and
Mark Graul (arrived after roll was taken)

EXCUSED: Barbara Dorff

ALSO PRESENT:  Brian Dworak, Aaron Popkey, Bill Vande Castle, and media.

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order by Chair Weycker at approximately 2:00 p.m.

2. ROLL CALL

Roll call was taken. All Board members were present except Barbara Dorff who was excused and Mr.
Graul who arrived at approximately 2:04 p.m.

Mr. Charles introduced himself as the new Board member and gave a background of his businesses
and involvement in various campaigns.

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Board recited the Pledge of Allegiance.
4, APPROVE/MODIFY AGENDA

A MOTION WAS MADE BY MARK GRAUL AND SECONDED BY SEN. COWLES TO
APPROVE THE AGENDA. A vote was taken. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

5. REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES —March 17, 2025, MEETING

A MOTION WAS MADE BY SEN. COWLES AND SECONDED BY KEITH LUCIUS TO
APPROVE THE MINUTES. A vote was taken. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

6. COMMUNICATIONS:
A. May 21, 2025, Green Bay Press Gazette Article RE: Wisconsin vs Notre Dame 2026

Mr. Dworak said this game was rescheduled from 2020 and it’s good to have a solid date on
the calendar. Sen. Cowles hoped it would be as good as the LSU game for ticket tax revenue.

B. Late Communications (if any)

There were no late communications.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY SEN. COWLES AND SECONDED BY KEITH LUCIUS TO
RECEIVE THE COMMUNICATION AND PLACE ON FILE.




STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
June 23, 2025
Page 2

7. SPECIAL EVENTS & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND UPDATE:

A.

Detail of Special Events and Economic Development Fund

Mr. Dworak presented the Special Event Economic Development Fund statement. It shows
the detailed activity, current funds available and future commitments. There were no changes
other than the NFL Draft listed as committed. The District did release $283,000 to Discover
Green Bay in early June. The bank balance is $1.1 million right now with $670,000 funds
available for future operations or event grants.

Chair Weycker asked if they requested the $283,000. Mr. Dworak confirmed they had. They
can request available funds but the District isn’t committed to release anything until the funds
are in their possession. Mr. Graul asked to be reminded of what was committed. Mr. Dworak
explained it was 50 percent of ticket tax revenues for events between 2022 and 2027 up to $1.2
million.

There were no other questions.

Post Event Reports:

Mr. Dworak explained that Mr. Everts wasn’t able to attend the meeting, so he would be
presenting the post event reports.

—  WIAA Girls Basketball March 12-14, 2025

Mr. Dworak stated the district provided $10,000 in funding which is $2,000 per division
for the Rush to the Resch campaign where the school that sells the most tickets through
that program received $2,000. Total attendance was down slightly from 2024 by 5,000
but the number of Rush to the Resch tickets sold were up by the same amount. In Division
1 there was a two ticket difference between the top two schools. Both sold over 900 tickets.
Sen .Cowles asked how many years the tournament will be coming here. Mr. Dworak said
they aren’t under contract yet but Discover Green Bay is confident about renewing the
contract and hoping it stays here in Green Bay.

- WAMO Dart Tournament May 14-18, 2025

Mr. Dworak explained it is a repeat event that the District has supported. The last time
Green Bay hosted was in 2021 with 3,800 dart throwers vs. 5,500 this year. It continues
to draw really well, and the event will come back in 2026 and 2028. Funds are allocated

to support those years.
- NFL Draft — April 24-26, 2025

Mr. Popkey gave a visual presentation of the Draft. He mentioned the 600,000 attendees
and the millions of tv viewers which was the second most watched Draft ever according
to the NFL behind Covid. The NFL felt good about those numbers and there were
favorable media impressions and sqpial media coverage.




STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
June 23, 2025
Page 3

They are still measuring the overall earned media. Discover Green Bay used a
measurement platform that reported over 40 million in their media placements and outlets
across the country and even internationally. Overall the coverage encouraged visitors to
the area.

He stated the overall ingress and egress took significant planning with the City, County
and Village. They were still tweaking the plan a couple weeks out but it all came together
well. He said he spent time in the control room —and law enforcement traffic cams showed
no huge bottlenecks including neighborhood parking.

Green Bay Metro offered transportation from downtown from parking areas downtown
and offered over 20,000 rides over 3 days. The Tavern League offered 2,600 rides over
the course of 3 days with 9,000 passengers. They utilized 40 shuttles and 90 drivers and
the feedback received was favorable. There were also rideshares (Uber, Lyft) offered. All
in all, the logistics for the event were an overall success.

The economic impact reported early on Discover Green Bay platforms was anticipated to
be $94 million overall statewide. The NFL will conduct a formal study.

Another impact was utilizing the NFL Source Program with over 80 companies —and well
over 100 applied. The Teammate program was a success as well with NFL hires at over
1,000 people and a lot were local.

There were downtown events — The Draft City Music Fest at Leicht park drew over 50,000
people; the Unofficial Kickoff and Wrap-up brought over 116,000 visitors from 44 states
with an average stay of 55 minutes.

Multiple nonprofits benefited in the food area and Delaware North contracted with
Lambeau Field to sell food and beverages throughout the campus. There were 80
organizations — with $180,000 in commissions, $90,000 in tips.

Other nonprofits received donated materials after the Draft — staging, carpet, furniture, etc
to Habitat for Humanity and Red Cross got collector items to auction off.

He stated there will be more information to come and will provide highlights for the Board.

Mr. Graul asked what the cost was. Mr. Popkey reported they spent $8.5 million. The
City got funding for security and they are settling the books with donations from partners
and supporters, the Stadium District, and the State. Costs may be above anticipated but
they will pay the balance. There were more arrangements in place that affected the Draft
planning and they made some additional asks off of that and municipalities reported more
costs due to that but they came in pretty close with some shifting of money and more
advertising

Mr. Graul asked if the revenue raised from the state, donors, etc. matches to date. Mr.
Popkey said they will not have any revenue but they did hit the number of $8.5 million.

Chair Weycker asked if the cost was $8.5 million — Mr. Popkey said the security costs
were separate and municipalities’ security costs put it over $8.5 million.




STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
June 23, 2025
Page 4

With no other questions on the Draft recap, Mr. Dworak said that Mr. Popkey would
discuss the Team’s efforts around booking events at the Stadium.

Mr. Popkey said they focus on concerts, football, and soccer events. They have been
making newer efforts behind this. However, the mid-May to mid-June timeline for
concerts involves keeping the football playing surface and it is the organization’s priority.
They take pride in their playing surface.

He displayed images from stage setups and the heavy equipment used to erect the stage.
They use special coverings to minimized damage but there will still be damage that occurs.
This damage takes several weeks to repair to get the field ready for games in August. He
said there was mention of replacing the sod after the events. However, the NFL players
ranked Lambeau Field one of the top playing surfaces. It is a hybrid system where real
grass is grown and fibers are stitched in to strengthen the surface. That allows a sand
based soil that drains well and has the density of a thicker soil for playability with cleats.
When the grass wears away the density and fibers will still allow good footing but it is not
a surface that will allow re-sodding. They reseed every year and the surface is well
regarded and well ranked across the league.

M. Popkey stated that Gabriel Dow has many relationships in the entertainment industry
and is in touch with shows’ promoters. However, they have lost out to nearby larger
markets like Chicago, Milwaukee, and Minnesota. They have to look at artists that will
sell in this market, so they keep trying and do more work with promoters. They also
explored having back-to-back shows. Festivals may also be an option with more artists.

He reported on the college football game next fall that was rescheduled because of Covid.
They looked at other things like the Big 10 championship but they like indoor facilities or
warmer climates. The Big 10 week has early season games and week zero games and they
have been in touch with them concerning this as a possible event.

They discussed soccer like the Munich and Manchester match two years ago. There is
continued interest to play friendlies here and they will travel to Europe to make the pitch.
The third locker room will be part of the pitch. The World Cup will be held in the US next
summer and they will investigate hosting possibilities associated with that event.

He stated they are looking at other college sports like volleyball as that popularity grows.
Mr. Vande Castle asked if they looked into college lacrosse. Mr. Popkey didn’t know if
they were exploring that, but the field is built for football games, and they can only handle
one event a year — maybe another smaller scale event could blend in. Mr. Vande Castle
added that college playoffs for lacrosse were being held at neutral venues but might not be
as big a draw as other sporting events but it would be field friendly.

Sen.Cowles asked about the 2026 game and whether or not that precludes looking for a
concert event in that window of time.

Mr. Popkey stated they are always looking and may look into expanding into mid-May.
Sen. Cowles added that the last concert was Paul McCartney. Mr. Popkey added they
were in discussions for other concerts. Sen. Cowles asked if Lambeau was competing
with Madison. Mr. Popkey said they were with Camp Randall jumping back into hosting

b/




STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
June 23, 2025
Page 5

shows and offering alcohol sales. Mr. Popkey added that that the artist has to want to be
here too. If they feel more comfortable with other markets they will go there. He said
they are not only competing with the calendar but with four cities as well.

Chair Weycker said they will be a half million short of what the Team has requested of
the District for the NFL Draft event. Mr. Popkey answered they are aware of that and it
is incentive for the Team because whatever isn’t collected gets replenished out of their

pocket.

Mr. Charles asked who decides what event to go after. Mr. Popkey said they look at the
artist and the industry and if they feel strongly about an artist they contact them.

Mr. Charles said they have some football guys doing concerts and Mr. Popkey noted the
fact that football is their first and foremost job. He asked if they considered hiring
somebody to pursue the concerts rather than getting a report to say they couldn’t get a
concert. Mr. Popkey said the Team’s front office works with particular areas that are not
specifically football people but they are event people. He stated again the Ms. Dow has
worked in that industry.

Mr. Charles asked if the District has a role in that. He asked if the field covering is the
latest technology used to prevent field damage. Mr. Popkey said the technology has gotten
better and the McCartney concert left it in better shape than in the past. They are always
looking for better setup and how teams work with them and have gotten better at it.

M. Charles asked if there was any way they could get more visibility. He assumes the
District Board hasn’t taken an active role in these things. Mr. Lucius said the Board has
taken an active role in encouraging getting a concert here.

Mr. Popkey said the District worked on events early on such as snow cross and worked
with PMI but the Team felt more confident in their ability to get acts.

Mr. Bouressa said there aren’t enough events for whatever reason and feels it would be
helpful to get more information on the Team’s effort to find acts and games. He feels the
District needs to know things are going on and there should be some accountability with
reports to the Board about the efforts being made.

Mr. Popkey said the report today was more of a high-level summary. Mr. Charles said
they want a seat at the table and should maybe consider funding to hire someone to sit and
participate in the decision making.

M. Charles said that some of it is the economics and he understands there are guarantees
that need to be made. If there is a $20 million event and the District gets $1 million with
no idea of how it comes together, the District might want to know more details. M.
Popkey said there is a high level of specificity that can be shared such as what shows are
out there and what promoters they work with.

Chair Weycker asked about the window of time being smaller than presented in the past.




STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
June 23, 2025
Page 6

Mr. Popkey said the two months being May-June and the outdoor concert season starts the
third week of June.

Mr. Charles said he feels the field is number one and if the technology continues to change,
they should look into what’s used. Mr. Popkey said the show uses their own stuff, Mr.
Bouressa doesn’t want to stick his nose where it doesn’t belong, but he feels it would be
helpful to see what takes place behind the scenes.

Mr. Lucius said he has been asked regularly why there aren’t more events in the bowl and
he would like to say they were working on something.

Mr. Popkey stated that it has become a much more competitive environment for getting
concerts to come here.

Mr. Charles asked about the process of negotiations on the new lease between the Packers
and the City. He said they haven’t gotten any information and asked if it was possible to
see minutes from the last couple of meetings. Mr. Dworak said it has been quiet for a
while at this point because of the NFL Draft.

Mr. Popkey said the meetings with the Team and the City were negotiation sessions. Sen.
Cowles understood that but stated the District needs to be in those meetings and it is a
slight not being in the meetings. Mr. Dworak said they hadn’t engaged with Ms. Patteson
about the lease negotiations because there were no ongoing communications.

Chair Weycker said the District is one of three parties in the Lease and should be part of
the negotiations.

Mr. Charles couldn’t find any information about the Lease negotiations. He asked if the
District has had any conversations with the City and Team.

Mr. Bouressa said he knew of discussions between the lawyers and different drafts of the
Lease between the City and the Packers. Mr. Lucius said he wanted to be at the table at
those meetings. Mr. Charles said they need to receive information too.

Mr. Popkey said the Team wants the District to be involves and communicated that. The
initial thoughts were that because there were more parts of the Lease that were between
the Team and City they were working through those pieces of the Lease first and there was
no slight intended.

Sen. Cowles asked if there was any progress made at those meetings. Mr. Popkey said
they got to a point where there was no more discussion and didn’t anticipate getting back
together soon.

Chair Weycker said there was a formal request from the District’s attorney. Mr, Dworak
said the City’s response was that the Team wouldn’t be working on it because of the Draft
but there was no formal response from the Team.




STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
June 23, 2025
Page 7

A MOTION WAS MADE BY MARK GRAUL AND SECONDED BY SEN. COWLES
TO APPROVE THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND UPDATE. Vote taken.
Motion passed.

FINANCIAL REPORTS — MARCH, APRIL, MAY 2025

Mr. Dworak explained the new format for the financial report. He directed the Board to pages 8B 1-
3 which is 30 pages into the report. He suggested they use this report format moving forward but left
the old format of reporting in the packet this time.

He said the first three pages are a roll up of all the different fund statements and income statements
for each of the funds. There are revenues and expenses by month and then rolling into the year-to-
date actual projected total and budget. For the most part, given they are only five months into the year,
the projected totals are in line with the budget for the year. Two numbers that are likely to move are
the user fee and ticket fee numbers. The Packers started another process for the user fees and started
taking back tickets if you sold all your tickets each year. The new seat user fee is $2,100 per seat and
the old packages (pre-south end zone) are $1,400 user fees. The net difference of $700 per seat is
generating revenue. The gold package has a smaller per seat fee.

Mr. Dworak reported the number will likely be higher at the end of the year. That number goes into
the Capital Improvements Fund as a way to fund projects the Team might submit under capital

projects.

If you look at the 40402 line item — it will be higher this year than the past 3 seasons when there’s
been a January home season game. This year all the home season games are in 2025.

He directed the Board to page 8b — 5 which is the District Operating Fund. It is the only fund of
discretionary expenses. There are a couple small variances so far but nothing significant to speak of
relating to budgeted 2025.

Mr. Charles asked who was managing the cash and reported there have been huge yield increases in
his business. He asked if all accounts are with Associated Bank. Mr. Dworak explained they are and
Associated has the District in a number of different investments like treasury strips that are allowed
by legislation.

Mr. Charles asked what the yield was. Mr. Dworak didn’t have an exact number. He said they are in
a number of different investments. He said the Special Events and Economic Development Fund is at
$1 million fund balance and are generating 4% in a money market account. It needs to be liquid, so
they only get $45,000 a year interest on that.

Mr. Graul said there are investments in specific treasury strips that come due as the District needs
them. Chair Weycker explained that some of the bank fees are for the credit card processing fees. Mr.
Dworak explained most of these on the 8B-7 statement are the fees for Associated to manage the funds.
The bigger number you’ll remember is in the Operations and Maintenance Fund where the budgeted
bank fees are $100,000 a year for credit card transaction fees for the user fees.

Sen. Cowles asked if there was an individual person or a key person the District deals with. M.
Dworak said they deal with a primary relationship manager. Mr. Webb is still very involved in helping
manage all the monthly bank statements.




STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
June 23, 2025
Page 8

Sen. Cowles asked if the District was missing out on anything or if Associated is looking out for the
District’s best interests. Mr. Dworak said they do look out for the District and ensure the funds are
earning the best yield. They can’t risk any investments because they have to maintain appropriate
balances in their funds.

Mr. Charles said he deals with this all day long. He said the fees wipe out half of what was made. He
feels Associated is also the Packers bank and there might be something about that.

Mr. Vande Castle explained that all public bodies have very strict investment rules that limit
municipalities to make certain types of investments.

Mr. Charles’ concern is the fees banks charge to make investments are in question.

Chair Weycker asked if this was something they should review with the Treasurer. Mr. Dworak said
those fees come out of what the available funds are to the Team — not out of the operating account.
The 8257 Fund is what funds the Operations & Maintenance Fund and the fees associated with that
are charged to the Operations & Maintenance Fund — the $100,000 fees less $100,000 less available
to Team. The District’s net financial position.

Mr. Vande Castle said the District could ask the auditor to look at the fees and ask from their
perspective whether those fees are high or average.

Mr. Lucius asked if they bid it out. Mr. Charles just suggested they look at the fees but if the Team is
picking up the tab on the bank fees it probably isn’t worth looking at. Mr. Graul said they aren’t
picking up the tab, but it comes out of money that comes to the District from ticket tax. Mr. Charles
said if they don’t spend it on that they just spend it on something else. He understands they don’t need
to spend too much time going over that. He just thought it might be having an impact on the District
but Mr. Dworak explained the fees have no direct impact on the District’s available funds. Mr. Graul
said the role of the Board is to look over those funds and how they are spending them.

Mr. Dworak said an audit is being performed and it will be presented at the September meeting. Mr.
Charles used CLA as well and they will do a good job.

Mr. Lucius said they should look at this and Mr. Dworak agreed there are relationship aspects with
Associated Bank. He will ask for a summary of those fees.

There were no other questions.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY MARK GRAUL AND SECONDED BY KEITH LUCIUS TO
APPROVE THE FINANCIAL REPORTS. A vote was taken. Motion passed.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Mr. Dworak moved on to the two fund statements. The financial reports are the year-to-date expense
reports. They detail the history of each fund.

The 8257 Fund Operations and Maintenance, the Special Events and Economic Development Fund
ties back down to the current bank balances and the history of ticket tax and other items that have gone

¢ -9




STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
June 23, 2025
Page 9

into it. The $280,000 line item is the check that was processed but not distributed yet or deposited by
Discover Green Bay yet.

Mr. Graul asked if the Packers came back for more money — if they’ve already raised the money why
do they need money from the District? They should have some sort of accounting to show us and if
they ask for the money in a year or year and a half from now and they already have it would the District

need to pay it.

Mr. Graul said they didn’t know what to expect and he gets that part. It seems they stated publicly
that they raised all they needed to put on the Draft and why would they come back to the District.

Chair Weycker said they committed $1.2 million and it was extended through 2027 stadium events.
Mr. Charles said they don’t have to worry about raising that much in 2 years and there’s nothing on
the books.

Mr. Graul said the next thing is the football game and if they raise $1 million then, half of that will go
to the Packers for the Draft a year and a half after it occurred.

Mr. Charles asked how they would get out of what they’ve already committed. Mr. Graul said they
could negotiate it. Mr. Charles said they probably won’t get anything back that they’ve already
committed. He said he feels it is incorrect to not include the District in the negotiations.

Chair Weycker said she is not privy to any of the City’s information regarding the negotiations. Mr.
Charles said there are revenue opportunities in these negotiations and what to make sure they tie in.

Mr. Dworak said the District User Fee — Capital Improvements Fund has a balance of $6.2 million at
the end of May. Mr. Charles asked about the 20% fee the Team calls it a tip for use of a skybox. The
Team said they don’t share it with the servers. He wondered where that flows into the revenue
streaming. Rather than raising ticket prices they add this fee. Mr. Dworak said the user fees are the
seat license fees that are a one-time fee. The 20% surcharge is between Delaware North and the
Packers. He said he doesn’t begrudge them but wanted to make sure the District gets everything they
can get. Chair Weycker said the legislation dictates what the District can get and it’s pretty restricted.

Mr. Dworak presented the quarterly maintenance report. He said that Sigma looks at the report to
identify trends and things they weren’t aware of so they can follow up on it for the annual review.

Chair Weycker asked about the tasks the City performs. Mr. Dworak said the City performs some of
the actual bowl maintenance and has been part of the City Maintenance Agreement for a long time.
Mr. Vande Caste said that some of that has to do with the water and sewer services that the City
maintains on or around the property. Chair Weycker said the items were peeling paint and loose
railings. Mr. Dworak said that is part of the original bowl and the City does it or contracts with
someone. The Packers also do some of the bowl restoration, but he will get some clarification on who
does what there. It is the first time he saw “City To Do” noted in a report. He said most of it is done
with a bowl restoration company for roughly $1 million a year.

Mr. Charles said they do a great job and there’s not a better facility anywhere.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY MARK GRAUL AND SECONDED BY SEN. COWLES TO
APPROVE THE DIRECTOR’S REPORT. A vote was taken. Motion passed.

(-7




STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
June 23, 2025
Page 10

10. OTHER MATTERS AUTHORIZED BY LAW
Sen. Cowles asked if the District could invite staff to speak with the District about stadium events.

Mr. Vande Castle said in the Lease negotiations he doesn’t know if the District has asked for anything.
Chair Weycker said they had to be included to ask for something.

He added that moving forward one thing to consider asking for is the Packers have committees and
they must have a committee for that task. As part of Lease negotiations, the District should ask to
have a member on that committee and sit in on their meetings. He explained they have a committee
and they bring it up to someone and they take a vote. If the District has an ex officio member sitting
on the committee they would have that information, but the information would probably have to be

kept private.

Sen. Cowles said it would be nice if they agreed to that, but he said they need to pressure them by
getting them to report at meetings. He’s asked by many about more events and how Bob Harlan
promised to open up the bowl to events.

Mr. Graul said that was mentioned in letters to the other parties of the Lease.

Mr. Charles said they should have a seat at the table and anything you want you can start incorporating
into lease negotiations not just saying you want to be there.

Mr. Dworak said some specifics have not been communicated yet so they should discuss them further
in a closed session. Mr, Charles said Mr. Vande Castle is going in the right direction.

Mr. Graul said the Team and City were told in 2021 that the District didn’t need to be in the discussions

at that time. Mr. Dworak said there are a lot of matters that don’t include the District and the City has
made it clear that the District doesn’t need to be included in the Lease which is different than at that

time,
11. MOTION TO ADJOURN

A MOTION WAS MADE BY KEITH LUCIUS AND SECONDED BY MARK GRAUL TO
ADJOURN THE MEETING. A vote was taken. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

The meeting adjourned at approximately 3:38 P.M.

Respectfully submitted,

(Dene ool

Diane Roskom
Administrative Specialist

/0O

>




- SHATTOK:

T30 VNN

i03 Xvd 03 pue iapjoljaieys
Siayaed Aeg uagig e 5u1an oy nof yuelj

‘Hiys io

1S3A pal B BuLieaM BAIJBJUASAIHA) SATIAIAS JS8NT B

N0 %3as i0 8UD |3A8| UD %S SADIAIBS 1Sang 3y}
{ISIA 8se3]d *SuBlySanh paje|al-SiaNaed AU 104 -

"palgyeid sI Bulaay enuuy ayi Jo

SELINI028) 0BPIA 10 DIPNE AUB )0 35N |BIIBWILDY

"juawAofua jeuosiad oA I0) 82IABD B|00LW JN0A o

BIBLIED U} DUB [, 2] 130UN SASUB| Y)IM] BIBLIBD

0youd [j14s In0A SN ) BWOD[SM BIE NOA Buysaw
8L} Djuf PBMD}E 40U BIB 2{ 1AAD SSUB| BIBWRY «

"Buaaw ay} Bulinp pue 8:0)80 SIBpjoYaIeYS J0)
sauiunyioddo ojoyd omj Y} J0 3BRIUBATE BXE] -

"SIBJSUBL] BIBDIIHAD

pue Sagueya Ssaippe Se yans siioy pajeial

13pjoyaieyg ALB 10J BUO [3A3] UD %SB S3MAIRG
13pI0Y3IBYS BUJ JISIA UBD DIDDA! B Si3pi0yaieys -

"}i03a! 16 13pjoyaieys
8y} Aq paseyaind ag Ajuo uea pue SIapjoyaIeLS
Siayaed Aeg U3aIg D} BNSN|AXE SI 3SIPUBYIAL

Sil] “S1apj0yBIRyS/ WO doySoIdsayoed |e
au1juo sAemie pue AP0} D0US Dig Si8YaRd al)
ul a|0ejleAe a0 {|im asIpuBy2IaL Japioyaieyg -

Buijaaw 3y} Suynp 8SINBIUDI BUY) U} A{OEJEAR 0S|B
3IB SUDISSATUD] “S3LIAIET WL AY) S [|3M SB
‘18] § UBYALLY BIB) 1B aBeIBABY PUB ponj Aofu3
"UMD) Uf 218 NOA BJILM B|NPBYAS IN0) WNIPRIS
34} N0 %J8UD UB BUiB4 §0 [|BY SIANDEY BY)

4ISIA 0} 1BT0) 1,UDP "LURLLY PI314 NEAOWE] U L) -

‘wny iay neague
31} 0 8uD 3AA] UD 4S3] SAJIAIBS JSANG ALY JISIA
PInoYS B3URISISSE JIBYD|BBYM BUIPA3L SiSBNY -

"wed pe:| 18 |mog Buieas ay) 0}
Bujuado saed yum w-d g je swidag 'Ajuo sisang
Payaxal} Joj ‘si13nIoyBIBYS 40 Bulasy (enuuy Ay} -

:AepD} 10} SA)0U M3} Y

SUITTOHIHVHS 40 SNILITW TYNNNY 6202 IHL 01 INODT1IM

§Ad 2r A3 PR A Pl R 00 P4 PR PIOAL FR A3 X 20 P S0 SR 9% SN 4V 2% PN £3 AR FY AN

v VVVVVY

030 pue juapisaid ‘Aydiny e — Syreway suisolg

1IEY7 BBLIWILO] YIeaun) AIUNLWILO] ‘SMOYEZ LYDP “UoH — Poday aayuwog yaeayng Auunwwos
JIRY] UDYRPUNDS ‘SBUCP UOSIIM — LDdaY uoyEpUNDY Siayaed Aeg uaaig
JIBY] 8aLIWWOY BulayIel g S3(es ‘PePpeH [BBYIIN — Loday aajuinog Sunayiel 8 Sajes
JiByJ salULL0g Hpny ‘uosig ooy — Uoday aspuuues ypny
11D 33JNUWOY JUBWISBAU *SAL30P KB1UaP — unday aayuwos JUauISay]
Junoa Axoid 8yl uo podal M aupietg A3104 J0 YA 1ed -

D1}93]3-8 10§ pajeuIWou Suian SI0jaaip ay) pue
SI0}08)1P BULIA) ) SI0SSBIINS 10} SUOHBLILIOY S SANILILIOD 8L} UD 1003l [jiM UABONS Xey -

J8upIe 4 Aajo4 4o led
1IR3 SaNIWIDg SHEYY J0}93110 ‘U3B0NS YIeW — oday sajunuog SHeyy Jnang

1ainseal] ‘Ipiuyas pey — poday S Jamseal

(137 pue Juapisald Sulwoau| ‘Aijod #1 — voday s,juapisalgd Sunuoou
033 pue Juspisaid ‘Autin yiew — potay s Juapisalg

IaBeuel\ |BI13UBY ‘}SUNYBINg UBUE — poday ||egIo04

Ale|a1a8g ‘sualy |ajueq — yoday wnion] s Aiejai03g
{D0U3S UBIH B10ald - 10J0311] DUa|ULY JURISISSY ‘YIRIBLIAY 88D — WwayLY |BUDLEN
039 pue Juapisaid ‘Audiny dIep — Siuswwog duiuadg

SNI938 INILTIN Wd E <

VON39Y




Sigyaed feg uaaig ay —

-$8439NS N0 0} JOJ3E] JUBILILIS € pUE 1813305 A1) SI S18%28  ABg Uaalg 3yj J0J Uoissed inoj
AieAo; pue poddns InoA 1o} ‘SpUaly pue S13ydans sisang ‘aiaymuians suej ‘saakoidua “Siapioy

1331 UDSEES *AlUnos umoig J0 Slapisal 8yl “SIapjoyaieys no o] voleraaidde a1aauis mo ssaidxa am

069°0YY1S fI8°BLE°18

6/0°2001 7I0°vR0

[BG'VEI 892962 SallIgel YD

BIE LY 2087201 SalH0ey uojesuatwog

{60°968 (B9'E8S 198g

ALIND3 3 SILmavn

RS 1Hg°aLe’ls $1aSSE [RJ0}

9a8°801 ogi'eni 18410

LA Bv9°86G 180 ‘jugwidinba g Auadold

HHAI] L8112 18 *sasnuor uludls paziuoweun

188'64AS 6V8'0ILS SjuaLjsanul g yse]
SpUEsnoyL ¢ S13SSY

V202 5202 J133IHS JONYTIVE

202 ONY 6202 'IE HJUYIW 030N SHYIA

"ONI “SHINTV AvE NITHT

133HS JINVIVE

SHINTOHIHYHS 40 ONILIIN TYNINNY

SHINTVd AVE NIIHD IH1 HO4

*papiaoid sjeiof 8y} o} Aasiaard dn ppe jou At Sjunowe ‘Bupunol o ang | ¢

-Ki3N140301531 *yZ02 PUe 5202 U1 UOH{IW 0°BIS RUE Z2°BIS JU ‘(a1 NESGWE] JO AIUBUAJUIBL BY)
PIEMO} JLSI WNIPEIS 1|B0J004 [PU0ISSajulg AUnD: umoig,/Aeq Uaalq ay) wol SUCKAGUU0D pajeB)go-asea) 0 JaN.

(21888 JRHHHIN Swoam N
gv0'ees 18818 {asuadx3] awogu] suyeiadg-uoy
180°088 oL'ess SuoyeIato woi Jold
2007688 G/6'0883 sastata jejoj
0Bl 7oy'a0l BABISIUILIDE § [213u3g
7L 1218 Jau ‘sanaey
BBY'GL ByL'28 juawaBesus ug) § Buyansew ‘sajes
oAl Eve'aL wea|
BAY'ZBES 2061188 81509 13eld
SISN3dX3
EvI'y80S GL0'BILS anuanai jejo]
28162 Gry'ong {ean
BIE'20vS  DRG2RKS [BUDIiEN
spuesnoyf ¢ JNNIATH
1202 5202 SANDINE 0 INIRIIVIS

202 ONY G202 'IE HIHYIN 030N3 SHYIA

IWOINT 0 INIWILVIS

"ONI "SHINOVd AvE N334




DETAIL OF SPECIAL EVENTS AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUNDS

Aug-25

TOTAL INFLOWS
SPECIAL EVENTS REVENUE
INTEREST EARNINGS
TRANSFER FROM DEBT SERVICE RESERVE INTEREST
TOTAL INFLOWS

TOTAL OUTFLOWS
GRANT PAYMENTS
EXPENSES-—-MR KUEHL
TRANSFER TO OPERATING - DISTRICT OPERATIONS
TOTAL OUTFLOWS

BALANCE

FUNDS COMMITTED AND APPROVED NOT PAID

DISTRICT OPERATIONS - 2025

LEASE NEGOTIATIONS - (as needed, approved 6/2022)
WAMO DARTS 2025,2026,2028

FOREST LAKES 2026 - 2028

USHL HOCKEY-2024,2025,2026

WAMO POOL TOURNAMENT-,2026

NFL DRAFT--2025

DUCK CREEK TRIATHLON 2025

GRANT PAYMENTS
WIAA GIRLS BASKETBALL-(2013-2014)

WIAA GIRLS BASKETBALL-(2015-2019,2022-2024)
WIAA GIRLS AND BOYS VOLLEYBALL-2019,2021-2024
VILLAGE OF HOWARD - DUCK CREEK TRIATHLON-2024
NFL DRAFT (2025)

YMCA NATIONAL GYMNASTICS EVENT-2025

USHL HOCKEY COMBINE (2024)

TALL SHIPS-2013 , 2016 AND 2019

WSAE-2014

WISCONSIN DENTAL ASSOC.-2014

CITY OF GREEN BAY HOTEL STUDY

CABELLA FISHING--2014

WISCONSIN WOMEN'S GYMNASTICS—2014
PMI--USHL FALL HOCKEY CLASSIC—2014

WAMO POOL TOUNAMENT-2015, 2017, 2019,2023
USA YOUTH SOCCER-2016

US BOWLING -2015

FOREST LAKE EVANGELICAL-(2015-2020,2022,2023, 2024)
USA GIRLS HOCKEY-2015

MEYER THEATRE —2015/2016

BROWN COUNTY SCOREBOARD—-2015/2016
NEVILLE PUBLIC MUSEUM--2015/2016/2019/2020
GREEN BAY CHILDREN'S MUSEUM--2015

CITY OF GREEN BAY-- BAY BEACH-- 2015/2016
PMI-GAMBLERS PRE-SEASON SHOWCASE-2015
WALLEYE FISHING CHAMPIONSHIP-2016

PROFE. WOMEN'S BOWLING ASSN 2016
ASHWAUBENON AQUATICS—2016

NEW ZOOLOGICAL-2016

BOTANICAL GARDENS 2016 -2017

ASHWAUBENON ARENA STUDY--2016 PAID IN 2017
IBT—2017

MASTERS WALLEYE QUALIFIER -2017

ANTIQUES ROARSHOW-2017

MIDWEST WOMEN'S BOWLING TOURNAMENT-2018
LIVING PROOF — BETH MOORE-2018

WAMO DARTS 2018,2021, 2025

SMALL MARKETS MEETING 2019

BROWN COUNTY FAIRGROUNDS STUDY-2016
EXPO CENTER

RESET FOR LIFE

CVB SPORTS FACGILITY STUDY

SPECIAL EVENTS REVENUE
SNOW CROSS- (2004-2006)
UW HOCKEY-2006

LEAP OF FAITH-2007

LZ LAMBEAU-2010

CHESNEY CONCERT--2011
CHESNEY CONCERT--2015
HALL OF FAME INDUCTION— Brett Favre—-2015
UW FOOTBALL VS LSU--2016
BILLY JOEL--2017

PAUL MCARTNEY-2019
SOCCER MATCH--2022

2,647,130.55
280,785.32
2,473,822.06

65,401,737.93

}

3,236,680.52

135,905.45
1,211,440.68
4,584,026.65

|

_ B17711.98

TOTAL

73,420.74
466.55
20,000.00
18,000.00
15,000.00
5,000.00
3,657.54
2,000.00

137,544.83

50,000.00
142,000.00
32,000.00
2,000.00
280,000.00
50,000.00
30,000.00
55,000.00
17,127.61
6,000.00
6,523.32
24,760.00
12,500.00
10,000.00
33,000.00
15,000.00
50,000.00
55,000.00
20,000.00
100,000.00
450,000.00
85,000.00
40,000.00
120,000.00
5,000.00
10,000.00
15,000.00
20,000,00
60,000.00
100,000.00
60,000.00
15,000.00
12,569.59
15,000.00
30,000.00
7,500.00
25,000.00
60,000.00
76,200.00
1,000,000.00
15,000.00
54,500.00

3,236,680.52

56,187.58
97,851.68
55,452.14
25,000.00
59,363.90
299,190.98
23,034.66
912,849.70
236,269.09
314,615.74
567,315.08

2,647,130.55

STATUS

Confirmed

Confirmed
Confirmed
Confirmed
Confirmed
Confirmed
Confirmed

FUND BALANCE AS OF 5/31/2025

817,711.28 BANK BALANCE
- DUE TO GENERAL FUND

817,711.28

137,544.83 COMMITTED NOT PAID

680,166.45 FUNDS AVAILABLE

FUNDS COMMITTED BY YEAR OF EVENT

2025 2026 2027 2028 2029
73,420.74
10,000.00 10,000.00
6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00
15,000.00
5,000.00
2,000.00
75,420.74 36,000.00 6,000.00 16,000.00 -




Duck Creek Triathlon 2025 Report

The 2025 Duck Creek Triathlon was held June 29, 2025 in the villages of
Howard and Suamico. This fully supported sprint triathlon featured a 750m swim
in Duck Creek Quarry, a 14-mile bike ride through Howard and Suamico, and an
out-and-back on the Mountain Bay Trail. The event was co-hosted by charity
partner Greater Green Bay YMCA and was open to athletes of all levels ages 13
and older.

This year saw 279 participants, an increase from 240 in the event’s first year
in 2024. Of the 279 participants, only 180 were from Brown County. The event
drew participants from California, Arizona, Minnesota, Illinois, Michigan, and
from across Wisconsin. Per Discover Green Bay, the 2025 Duck Creek Triathlon
had a $60,000 economic impact for the area.

The $2,000 grant from the Green Bay/Brown County Professional Football

Stadium District was used to purchase seven print ads that ran in the Central East,
Central West, Chicagoland, and Northwest markets of Illinois in April.

N

B




County
Alameda
Brown
Carver
Chippewa
Clark
Cook

Dane

Door

Fond Du Lac
Hennepin
Jefferson
Manitowoc
Marathon
Maricopa
Marinette
Marguette
Milwaukee
Oconto
Outagamie
Rock
Shawano
Sheboygan
Taylor
Washington
Waukesha
Waupaca
Waushara
Winnebago
Total

State

CA
wi
MN
Wi
Wi
L
Wi
wi
wi
MN
Wi
Wi
Wi

wi
Ml
Wi
Wi
Wi
Wi
Wi
Wi
wi
MN
wi

Wi
Wi

Registrations

1
180

- W~ NN = BRNOW W - N

[ -
A o o

W = WU - N W N -

279

s

\

Oy




GREEN BAY / BROWN COUNTY
PROFESSIONAL FOOTBALL STADIUM DISTRICT
POST-EVENT INFORMATION

Event: United States Hockey League (USHL) Combines
Dates: Phase Il: April 17-20; Phase I: May 1-4; Player Development Combine: July 17-20,

2025.
Funding Provided: $15,000 (second year of three years at $15,000 per year)

Criterion Summary & Comments

Event Dates/Length of Event: Players who are invited to participate in the Combine
were pre-screened and scouted by USHL Central Scouting Staff. Participating players
had the opportunity to showcase their skills while playing five (5) games in front of USHL

coaches and scouts, as well as NCAA coaches.
Invitees will also participate in off-ice physical and cognitive testing. There was also
various opportunities for informational, educational, and networking components to

help players better understand what it takes to play in the USHL.

For those with 2006, 2007 and 2008 birth years, this was their opportunity to be seen

prior to the USHL Draft. The 2008 Combine is a great opportunity for players who are
just starting their draft process in preparation for the 2024 USHL Draft.

Players can learn from and talk with USHL Coaches and General Managers as they

look ahead to their first year of USHL Draft eligibility. Phase Il are those born in 2007 &
2008, Phase | is 2009 & 2010 and Player Development is 2011 & 2012 birth years.
Each of the three events took place over a three-day time period ~ Thursday to

Saturday.

Number of Aftendees: Phase Il had 252 out of 320 max; Phase | had 310 out of 480
max, while PD had 134 out of 200 max. A total of 696. The funding request estimates
were for 1000 participants over the three events. This was down by

In-county: there were a small handful of participants from Brown County.
Out-of-county: there were additional attendees from within Wisconsin, but otherwise

this was a nationally attended event.

Use of Funds: To help cover the difference in costs between what Chicago has been
providing in recent years versus the costs of hosting in Green Bay. The costs were

higher in Green Bay.

Risk Sharing/Matching Funds: The CVB contfributed an additional $5,000+ towards the
event and Brown County provided the remaining funds to cover the proposed $50,000

of promised hosting dollars to the USHL.

Revenues/Fund Replacement: Revenue was not generated from the Stadium District
funds.

Relationship to Titletown District: The event was at Cornerstone.

-9
L
\;\




Room Nights: The rooms were contracted through TeamTravel Source, a third-party
housing company. They tracked the following rooms for each event: Phase Il - 500;
Phase | — 947; and Player Development —413. This was a total of 1860. The funding

request estimates were for 1700 room nights.

Conflict with other events: The April events competed with a few other volleyball and
convention groups in fown. And then the NFL Draft moved the second spring event to

the first weekend in May.

Economic Impact: The direct spending impact for the three events individually were:
P1 - $315,000; P2 - $255,000 and PD - $148,000. This totals $718,000 for the three events
combined. The funding request estimates were for $875,000.

Earned Media: The event didn't draw that much local media coverage. It was mostly
through the USHL social media channels.

Likelihood of Recurrence: The event is contracted for Green Bay fo be at Cornerstone
for a three-year deal. This was year two, with one more to go, with 2026 being the last
year of the contract. There is an option for an additional two-years for 2027 and 2028.

Additional notes/comments: They have not announced dates yet, but would
anticipate the two Phases would be 31 and 4h weekends in April; with the PDC in mid

to late July.




GREEN BAY / BROWN COUNTY
PROFESSIONAL FOOTBALL STADIUM DISTRICT
POST-EVENT INFORMATION

Event: YMCA National Championships
Dates: June 24-29, 2025
Funding Provided: $50,000

Criterlon Summary & Comments
Event Dates/Length of Event: The event started on Tuesday, with a Senior Reception aft

the Lambeau Field Atrium; as well as check-in from 10am to 6pm. The Coaches
Meeting was immediately after the Senior Reception. Wednesday was check-in from
7am until 1pm, along with the Opening Ceremony at Resch Center. The competition

was from Thursday until Saturday, at the Resch Expo.

Number of Attendees: There were 1791 gymnasts competing at the event. The funding
request estimates were for 1800+.

In-county: The Green Bay YMCA is one of the largest gyms in the state. They

accounted for approximately 100 gymnasts.
Out-of-county: There were additional attendees from Wisconsin. Estimated that af

least 1500 were from out-of-state.

Use of Funds: To help with the costs of renting Resch Expo (3 days), Resch Center (1
day) and the Lambeau Field Atrium (1 afternoon).

Risk Sharing/Matching Funds: The CVB contributed an additional $5,000 towards the
event.

Revenues/Fund Replacement: Revenue was not generated from the Stadium District
funds.

Relationship to Titletown District: The event was at the Resch Complex and Lambeau
Field.

Room Nights: The rooms were confracted a third party company. There was an
estimated 7,000 room nights from the event. Funding request was for 9,500-10,000.
There were a large number of people did not use the housing company for their

reservations or they stayed in an AirBnB/rental.

Conflict with other events: There were other sports events going on in the area
(baseball, softball, etc.)

Economic Impact: The direct spending impact for the event was over $3.2 million. The
funding request was estimated to be $4.5-5 million. We used the room night totals to

come up with the event impact.

<\




Earned Media: The event had a lot of local coverage, especially for the Opening
Ceremony, as Olympic medalist Jordan Chiles was the keynote speaker.
Here are some links from the various news stories about the event:

Announcement the year before: https://foxI 1 online.com/news/local/resch-expo-to-host-
2025-vmc0—no'rionoI—qvmnos’rics—chompionships—oshwaubenon—qreen—bov—fond—du~loc—

marinette-menominee-athletes#

Coverage of opening ceremonies and Jordan Chiles keynote:
https://fox] lonline.com/soorts/locol—soor’rs/olvmoic—qold—medoIis’r—inspires—vounq—qvmnos’rs—o'r—
vmco-na’rionol—chdmpionshios—in—qreen—bov—iordon-chiles—fond—du—loc—morineﬁe—menominee-

aymnastics-keynote-spedaker-competition#

httos://www.youtube.com/watch3v=yQaSWEYAVSE

hHDs://www.wbov.com/video/2025/06/24/resch—expo-hosts-non‘ioncnl—qvmnos’rics—
championships/

Likelihood of Recurrence: We have not heard when the next possible year would be to
host, but we would hope to host again in the next 3-5 years. See Additional notes

“below for additional commentary.

Additional notes/comments: We have heard nothing but positive comments about
the event and the facilities. Green Bay/Ashwaubenon has a unique situation for these
events — as we have both a large expo hall connected to an arena. For events like
YMCA Gymnastics, this means participants can stay within close proximity and not
drive around town to the different facilities.

97




GREEN BAY/BROWN COUNTY
PROFESSIONAL FOOTBALL STADIUM DISTRICT

EVENT SCORE SHEET

Event: USA Hockey Nationals Youth Tier I 150only & 16under Tournament Sponsor: GBAYHA

Type of Event: youth hockey ~ Event Date(s): March 24-29, 2026

Venue(s): Cornerstone & De Pere Ice  Attendance/Participants: 32 teams, with estimated 650 youth

Estimated Room Nights: 4000 Estimated Economic Impact: $2 million

Funding Requested: $30,000 Use of Funds: help with host & officiating fees

Bid Due Date: late 2024 Bid Award Date: late 2024 Funds Needed Date: early 2026

Requested Funds Available (check one): Yes No Venue Available (check one): Yes No
CRITERION COMMENTS
Name/Type of Event This is a multi-day youth hockey event, with 32 total teams

Event Dates/ Length of Event

Event starts on Thursday and concludes on Sunday

Number of Attendees/Participants:

Estimating 650 youth and 2200 spectators

e In County No teams from local
e Qut-of-County All teams from outside the area; may not even have a WI team
Event Budget:

e District Fund Balance

Assist with required hosting fees.

Bid Fee/Incentive Required

Funds would go towards host & officials fees

Risk Sharing/Matching Funds

Discover GB will be a credential sponsor ($5000)

¢ Revenue/Fund Replenishment

Relationship to Titletown District

Some teams may schedule stadium tours

Estimated Room Nights

Estimated around 4000

Conflict with Other Events

Two other events going on that we know of — basketball &
gymnastics

Economic Impact

Approximately $2 million

Earned Media

Social media and local television coverage expected

Other Factors:

o Time of Year

Late March

s Likelihood of Recurrence

Have been hosting every 2-3 years

e Event Planning

Cornerstone and Green Bay Area Youth Hockey Association have

served as excellent hosts for past USA Hockey Nationals

7§




G202 ‘L€ Isnbny ybnoaylL

STVIONVNId
A1LVA-0OL-AdVIA

LO1RM1SId NNIAVYLS
T1T1Vd.1l004d TVYNOISS34d0ud
ALNNOD NMOUE/AVE NIFUD

o



S20Z LSNONVY HONOUHL 31VA O WVIA

AGVAINNS TYIONYNIS

{0 A

[(0z'9/2'6¢S) 88'955'69¢'8L 890808821 €EBLLGSL S $5°096 065, (6Z¥EOLL) Wl tlease) 8l Lev 6ot $ZB6Y'SeT 175907/} 58°508°SLL 69°258'951'9 S3INNIAZY WLOL
2T 59'sY 889556187 017202 598 2 9E'ZBE 10E'S 150162 17°65925 SZ 961 82} 16246021 YEVeT 8L 89°8/0°Ci 1 Sg908'ELL yI'695L19°S
- T T - g - - - - - - - SAHEIO0Yd 3LON 1560%
- vL°02Y'86 $2°029'86 00°000'52 - - Q0°000'52 - - - - - ININGOTIAIA JINONODT NI ¥IASNVHL ¥760¥
- - . - - - - - - - - - S103r0dd TYLIdYD NI ¥3ISNVAL Zr60y
(002219 00'008'¥Z 00'€L9'1Z 00°£49'LZ - - - - - - - 00°€9'tZ  ONVNILNIVIN ONV NOILVHIAO NI ¥I4SNVYL L¥60T
(8L222'Y) rLlee'ses's 9€'e01'825's STirv'esy's - - - - - 90°092'¢1 - 6L L8L'SLY'S ONN4 £528 NI M3ISNYHL 0V60F
- 00°000°5¥ 00°000'sY £5°626'62 S¥°006'Z €€'180'e 12°596'e €17198'e 69°220'% 15°LY9'E 716207 LG LOE'Y QNN ASA OINONOO3 NO LSTHILNI §160%
- 00°500'006'1 00°500°006' L LLLZ5'855 66'958'LS zoelg'se Fra-Ti-grs 15elp's9 0£'929'08 25°8L0'¢9 19°e5e'e8 £8'€96'16 SANME 3NNIAIY WIDIS NO LSINIUN L160Y
00°000°0§ 00°000°002 00'000'052 19°¢86'08L 95'7L0'8L 81'508'Y1 oLy Le'Lov'ey zLyeiel YTHeg'Le 0Z680'02 01°446'S2 SANNZ NOLLONYLSNOD NO LSINILINI 0L60%
. - - - - - - - - - - - SUHIOOU HLON NO LSTHILNI 80607
- - - - - - - - - - - - INNY SANISTY FOIAYIS LERA NO LSTYIINI L0680
- - - - - - - - - - - - SANNA ONOS NO LSTHIUNI 5060
- - - - - B - - - - - - SLIS0d30 XYL STTVS NO LSIHILNI £060F
- 00°000'22 00°000'2Z 92°528'} 15°8€1 85'551 z6°28L 96002 €502 selez Y882 157008 GONNd TYHINIO NO LSTYILNI L0s0Y
SNOSNVTTHOSIN 0060
= B - B B - - - - . - - 334 NOILLONYS 0180%
- - - - - - - - - . - - SNOLLYNOQ NVIAAWY13AYS $080%
- - - - - - - - - . - - INOVI TIVELOOS TYNOLLYN 2080
- - - - - - - - - - - - SUDIOVd AVE NIIHO 1080V
SNOILYNOG 0080%
(Zv'126°v8S) 00°000 055 0} 85°810°596'6 16°9ELESY'T 96°550'8/6"L  (00'000'88L) __ (00°01¥'S8Y) 18°8£5'8V2 00°6.2'LYL 65°686'% L - SG'88Z6EL L
- 007000700} 00°000°00} 99°/E5'€S 0T58TL 00°006'Z 000692 18°8E5°S 00°628°¢ 6588671 - 00092 S33d TUL ONV MOINE  L0VOY
- - - - - - - - - - - - <40 MOIHO XVL INOONI 90v0
85°8L0'S1 00°000°05€ 85°8L0'59€ 85'840'59¢ 95°8.0'69€ - - - - - - - $33d ILV1d ISNIOIT 5050
- - - - - - - . - - - - SINSAT VIOIJS €0V0P
- 00°000°005'8 00°000'005'6 €L°0ZL'988'T 81°269'502'L - - - - - - S§'820'SEL L 334 I3M0IL 20000
(00°000'009) 00°000°009 - (00°009'€0¢£) - (00'008's61)  (00°00L'v6P) 00°000'EHZ oo"00v'eyl - - - $33- ¥ISN LOYOY
SISFYHD or18nd 00¥0Y
B - - - - - - - - - - - $33-4 ¥IHLO ONV TYNOISSI30¥d £0£0%
SISUVHO TVININNGSAODEIINI 00£0%
g - - - - - - - - - - - NISNODSIM 40 3LViS S020v
SNNSASY VINSANSIAODYLLNI 0020t
- = < - - - - - - - - - XYL STIVS L0L0Y
SIAXVL 00L0¥
IONVIIVA 13sana viol TALOY # 100V
Q3Lo3roNd szoz QaLodroyd aLa *SINNIAIY
S20Z 5202 isnony Ane annr AV WdY HONVYI A¥VN¥E3d  ANVANYE



dWOD SUDHIOM 50908

YTIENENN - ALV TYHENED $090S
ALMIEVYT TYNOISS3AON £0905
QLNY 3INMO-NON 20908
ALMNAVITIVHINGD 10908

103

SONVENSNT oos0s

SSHOOV LANYILNI £0508
LH40ddNS ANY SONYNILNIVIN 20505
NOLLYTIVLSNI/ANINAINDI/ZIVMLAOS 10508

SIDIAISS NOIIVNEOSNT 00505

SIONTAUIINOD €005

(SILUNIOVL ¥IHLO OL Sdl¥L 40
NIANBLAA) SASNIIXI ONV SOVIUN J4V.LS 20008
SISNIXA ® IOV NN YISWIW AVOF 10405

ONINIVHL ANV FONIHIINOD 13AVHL 00b08

ISNIJX3 SNOANYTIZOSIN 01€08
INIWLINDA 301450 80€0S

FASN3JX3 P S3ANddNS 301340 80€0S
S’HOOE ? SNOLLARNOSENS LOE0S
SdIHSYIAN3 ANV $3NA 90€05

LSOO XY/AJOO S0£05

ANINLINEOTYE ONY ONISILEIATY Y0805
AMIAITSQ ONY 3DVLSOd £0£05
BNOHJITIL 20€08

ONILNIRAd ONV AYINOILYLS L0E0S

SSNIdXT H0I230 00£05

ANSWLISNIrOY AXVIVS 01208
ANTWTHLLIY 80205

ALIMNEYSIQ 80209

FONVHNSNI 3317 L0208

O0N 3ALYLS ANV TvH303d 90208
DONVHNSNI TVINZQA $0205
IONVHENSNI HLTYIH ¥020§
ANIWAOCTININN €0Z05
TAVYDIIQIN 20Z0S

ALIEN03S TVID0S 10Z0§

STESN=E 30N 00205

o0'size 00°00€'SZ. 0068072 00'580'22 - - - - - 00’8l - 0088022
0088 007008 0oziy 002y - - - - - o008l - 00°96¢
00°s¥S 00°008'9} 00°552'94 00°552'94 - - - - - - - 00°'ssz'ob
00285’ 00°000'¢ 00°'8LY's 00'8LY's - - - - - - - 00°8LY'S

- 0070s8 00088 - - - d - hd hd - -

- 00008 Q0°00S - - - - - - - - -

- 00°05¢ 00°05¢ - - - - - - - - -

- 00°SZLY 00°szL'y Q50ve SE9L 80'sL ooze 06 SPig 00z SS°rL -

- 007002 00°00C 6186 se'vy 897CE - L0°L% - - 353 -

- # 00°5.5'L 00°548°L 9L YT 0o'ze 00°Ze 00°ze 00°ze 0028 00ze x4 -

- 00°008 00°00§ - - - - - - - - -

- 007008 007008 - - - - - - - - -

- 00°00% 00008 - - - - - - - - -

- 00058 00°08s s8'6L - 05701 - - 4] - - -

- 007006 007006 - - - - - - - - -

- 965616 96661 6 ¥671el's 90°LLL SO°LEL STEY0'L 8860 88°60L 68604 88604 SOLiv

- 50'98L'y S0'98L'y BLYIY'T Le'tee Lg'tee 96Z8Y Lg'1ze 187128 L6712 Le'lze -

- vZZov yozoy 81°50¢ 89°vE 89°vE 69°vE Z5°ee s'ee 2e5ee 29'ee ¥0°L9

- GE'ELS seele 10°69S B9 L1729 97001 pAYAS L1298 8119 L8 1zs9

- ZereL's ZEYEL'S 96°ZEY'T ZTL8e krok:74 a0y wiee elee wise Ti8e 08'8LC

- 067082 09 06°0€2'09 01LLE'6E 092€9 % 092Eg'y 097Ze9' 06'8¥6'9 092¢9% 0972ES'Y 097Ze9'y 097Ze9'y

- 06°0£2°09 06708209 0l°Lie’se 09ZE9'y 092€9'y 097Te9'y 06°8v6'9 0929 09Ze9'v 0972Z¢9'y 0977e9'y

TWNLOVY l3sang AvALOY WNLOY
Q3L03rodd §20Z a3Lo3roud air lsnony Ane annr AV TRdY HOYYN Advnygad AAVANYT
s202 5202 S20T

S20Z LSNOAY HONOUHL 3LVQ OL AVIA

AUVIRINAS TVIONVYNIH

SIAVIYS L0105

AdYIVS 00L0S

#1030V
*S3ASNIAAX3



ey = T Frvay T e aTagnt Py Y
81°262'L 21°878'282'42 66°585'19Z°vT £2°89¢'0%0'6 £1°805'e2 00°688°ZS 10'989°81 12827162 $9°801°2¢ €2°268°9Z0'C _ 9L°SYE'SE 1'299°895'S SISNIdXT Tviol
81101 86'166'€59'8 0L yiy'ore’s SZTIBE0ES'S - 00700052 - - - S0°ZES0L0'S - 1098 ¥6¥'S
00°22L'E pL0ZZECL $2°860°021 00°€L9GY - 00700052 - - - - B 0'€L91Z QNN ONILYHIHO LORLSI OL ¥IASNVAL 18605
8L'L22'L £0°629'L8%'S ST LYY 98Y's ST iv'esr's - - - - - 90'09Z'el - 6LTLBL'SLY'S 1N SONVYNILINIVIA 2 SHIVATY OL HIASNVL 08605
R . - - - - - - . - - - IOIANTS 1830 OL HIISNVAL 62605
. - - - - - - - - - - - SINIAS WVIOIdS OL ¥IISNVHL 82605
- - - - - - - - - - - - ONNA £528 OL MIJISNWAL 22605
R . - . - - - - - - - . AJANOOH OL YIASNVHL 92605
- 11°959' Ly 11°959'Ly - - - - - - - - - QNN ONLLYNIHO OL H34SNVHL 52605
00°€2L'Z 00°000°000'¢ 00'LLT'L66'T 00°LL2'L66'2 - - - - - 00°LL2'1868'Z - - SLINIWINOHNE TYLIIYO 0L60S
R - - - - - - - - - - - ISNIdXT I0INNIS LES3A ¥IHLO 89605
- . - - - - - - - - - . AONIONLLNOD LOHrONd L5608
. - - - - - - - - . - - SLS00 LOIrO¥d ¥IHLO 95605
. . - - - - - - - - - - S1S0D ONIONVNIH LOBroNd 55608
- - - - - - - - - - - - SLS00 INSNCOTIAIC LOZrONd ¥5605
- - “ - - - - - - - . - FNGINDI B STAUNLXIA ‘TANLINYNGS LO3rOYd £5605
- . - - - - - - - - - - S1S09 NOLLONYLSNOD LO3roYd 25605
. - - - - - - - - - - - NINIAOUAWI % NOLLISINOOV FLIS LOIrodd L5605
- - - - - - - - - - - - SUIVAIY VLIV £060S
- - - - - - - - - - - - ANINGINDI WIHLO 20605
- 00°000'} 00°000°L - - - - - - - - - ANAWINDT J01440 1060S
STUNLIONIIXT WLavo 00605
{00"000°6) 00°004'189 00°00/°069 oy ery Z1°€80'8L Zovr'ze fra 144} 8975682 ZL20L e 81°696°01 £.'886'6 LE'689'0Y
- B - - - - - - - - - - OLIMN —38WIEN 15805
- 00°000°0} 00°000'0} - - - - - - - - - HOLINOW INSANFJIANI IEMWIEN 05805
{00°000'6) 00°005'¥21 00°008'sEL SY'0P6'0S 187198 LL199'0L v529L'T 68'859'C 9L°068'2 sLl0k'e £1°656'2 1e°952'e ST ¥NVE QI4YND 0£80S
- 00°000°05€ 00°000'05¢ 00°000'22€ - - - 00°000'082 00°000°04 - - 00°000'28 LNFONI /SINYHO INSWJOTIAIA OINONODT 52805
. 00°000°0%1 00°000'0¥L 00'¥9¥' LS 00°¢eP'9 00°€EY'9 oo'eey's 00°¢EY'9 00'¢ey'9 00°EEH'9 00°cEr'e 00°¢st'9 LIANY IONYNILNIVININIWIOVNYIN VWOIS §1805
- 00°000's 00°000°S 00°000's - 00°000's - - - - - - 3 ¥ISN LORILSIA- STOINGES GILOVHINOD #1805
- 00°000'sZ 00°000'62 95°682'12 00°000'8 - - - 95°ZrL'zL 00°ert'L - - SHOIYE- STOINMES ASLOVHINOD ZL80§
- - - - - - - . - - - - 7LINSNOD WYHDONdAIOLOTIA SALLNOIX 80805
. - - - - - - - - - - - AINVIINSNOO NOLLONMLSNOD 080§
- 00°000°Z 00°000'2 05'929 - 05'68¢ - - 00°2£2 - - - TISNNOD YOO £0805
- 00700051 00°000°S} 00°59. - - - 00°€8Y - 00282 - - TISNNOD TYNOIDIY Z080§
- 00°002'01 00°00Z'0F £6¥9E'S 52'986 - 89'9LL°¢ - - - 00'009 - SIVINUIS ONILNNODOOV 2 LIANY TYNINNY 1080S
SADING3S TYNCISSEIOTd 00805
- €0°SLZLP8PL €0'S.T LYBYL - - - - - - - - -
- - - = - B - B - - - - IVIHOLINY $020§
. £0'SL2T Y8 €0'6LZ'LY8'YL - - - - . - - - - SHIVATU/EONYNILNIVIN €005
- - - - - - - - - - - - SILNILA 20205
- - - - - - - - - - - - NS 10408
SISO ONIGTING 301240 ANV INIY 00405
NIV Igsang WALoY Feniov
QaLO3roNd 5202 Q31o3royd aw isnonvy Anr anne AVIN THdY HOMNYIN AMYNNE3S  ANVANYE (panunuos) :g3SNIdXI
szoz s202 s202

SZ0Z 1SNONY HONOWHL 3Lva OL ¥VIA

AGVWINAS TVIONVYNIL




00'00L'e

00°00}'e 05°0vE SE9L 80°GL 007¢ 2067 Sy L9 [ R -
- 00602 00002 6196 SEVY 85CE - 0L - - 353 - ISNIdXT SNOINYTIZOSIN 04805 ﬂ?
- - - - B - - - - - - - ONIHSINYNA/LNINGINDS 31240 60E05 o
- 00°00L 00002 9e9ZZ ooze 00ze 00°ZE 00°Ze 00'Z$ 00°ze 9e'2l - ISNIXE ® $INddNS 301440 80€05 \M,,.
- - - - - - - - - - - - SHOOS B SNOLLJIHOSENS 20805
- 00'005 00°00S - - - - - - - - - SJIHSHIGNIN ONY S3NA 90805
- 00°00S 007008 - - - - - - - - - 1800 XV4/AJOD SO£0S
- - - - - - - - - - - - LINIWLINHOIY OGNV ONISLLEIAQY ¥0£08
- 00°00€ 00°00€ s6'6L - 050l - - 4 - - - AYIANIA ANV IOVLSOd £0£05
- 00°006 00006 - - - - - - - - - INOHJIT3L 20£08
- - - - - - - - - - - - ONILNIYd ONY AYINOLLYLS LOE0S
ISNIdXE 30330 00£0S
- 96'G6L 6 966616 ¥612L'S 90°LLL SO STEv0') 88°60L 88°60L 68'60Z 8860 S0Vib
- - - - - - - - - - - - ANAWLSNraY AYYIVS 01206
- 50981y 50°98L'Y 8LYLY'T 16128 6°12¢ 96287 167128 16128 167128 lelee - AINSINIILIY 60205
- - - - - - - - - - - - ALIMIEYSIA 8020S
- vz zor ¥ZZ07 6L°50¢ 89'VE 69%€ 89'7E zoee z5ee e5ee z5'ee ¥0'L9 FONVANSNI 341 L0208
- - - - - - - - - - - - 00N ALVLS ONV Tvy3a34 90205
- - - - - - - - - - - - FONVANSNI TYINIA 50205
- - - - - - - - - - - - SONVHNSNI HLTV3H $0Z05
- - - - - - - - - - - - LINSWAOTJWINN €0Z05
- se'el8 Se'eL8 10°'695 8L'L9 JAWL) 9004 L4149 JAWL:] 8129 yAL:) Lz'59 VOITAN 20205
- zEveL's zeveL's 96°ZEY'T zTL8T Twise $8°0EY zTL8T 8T TTL8T 4l 74 08'8.Z ALI¥NOIS MIO0S 1L020S
SLi33N38 IONIES 00205
- 0608209 06°062°09 0L'LLE'6E 09°ZE9Y 09°ZE9'Y 09°ZE9Y 06'86'9 09°ZE9Y 092E9Y 09'ZE9Y 097€9'Y
- 06°0£2'09 06'0£2°09 01°LLE'6E 09'Z€9Y 0972E9 Y 087897 06'8Y6'9 092€9% 0929y 0929 092e9¥ SARVIVS 10L0S
AJVIVS 0010S
viol WNIoY
FONVIGVA 1=5ans ag1o3arodd ala # 100V
a3103roud s20Z 5202 5202 isnony Anre annr AV RIdY HONVIN ANYNEE3d  AUVONYE EECEEVE]
(00°Z2t's) 68'9/8°981 S8'6v.L'e8L 9T BeY By /5'8EL 85°651 26°281'SC 96°00C £5°0€C Ge1eT ¥8%82 1G'€L0'ee SANNHEATY TVIOL
00°Z21e) G8'9/8'98L Ge'67L'E8L oz 86Y 8Y /5°8EL 86651 26281'5C 96002 €5°0EC SE1ET 88T 1662022
- ¥/°02v'86 y.°02v'86 00°000°52 - - 0000052 - - - - - LINIWCOTIASA DINONODS NI ¥3JSNVAL v¥e0P
(00°2zL'e) 0000842 00'€49'L2 00°€L9'12 - - - - - - - 00'€£9'1Z IVNILNIVIN NY NOILLYH3dO NI ¥3ISNWIL Lye0r
- 119691y 11°959' Ly - - - - - - - - - AONN4 2628 NI ¥34SNVHL 0r60r
- 0000022 00°000'22 9z'5z8'L LS8 85551 26281 96'002 £5°082 GE1ET ¥88Z 15°00% ANN4 TYHINTO NO LSIILINI 10607
SHOANV T 1J0SIN 00607
- - - - - - - - - - - - $33d4 WIHLO ONV TYNOISSII0Nd £0€0Y
$35EYHD VINIWNTZAOSTSLINI ooeoy
- - - - - - - - - - - - XVL1SFIVS L0LoY
SIXVI 0010V
SONUIEYA 1F5ana Sviol IVNLOYV # 100V
Q3103roud §20Z a3103roud aiA ISANNIATY
5202 5202 Lsnany Anr annr AV MY HONVYIN ANVNNEId  ANYANYR

S20Z 1SNONVY HONOUHL 3Lva OL ¥V3A

aNNd ONLLVHIJO LORLSIa



.

Doy,

S$3SNIdXZ TVIO0L

ANINGINDT W3HLO 20805
INIWINDS 301440 10608
SFANLIANIdXH WLIdYD 00605

1aNY 3ONYNILNIYA/LNIWIOYNYN YINDIS S1805

SHORIG~ SFDINATIS TALOVULINOD 21808

INSNOD NYHDOULAOLOFHIA IALLNDIXT 80805

ANVLINSNOD NOILONHULSNOD L0805

TISNNOD YOO £0808

TIESNNOD TYNOID3Y 2080%

SAVNAMIS ONILNNODIY B LIANY TYNNNY L0805
S3DIAYIS TYNQOISSII0HEL 00805

TVIMOLINVI #0208
SYUIVAIWIONYNILNIVIA €005
SIUMILN 20L0S
IN3Y 10205

SISO SNIGTINg #0140 ONV INJY 00205

dINOD SHIHUOM 50906

VTTIHENN - ALTIEYIT TWHINSD $0906

ALMIBYIT TYNOISSEH0Nd £0905

OLNY O3NMO-NON 20805

ALTHEVITIVHENDD 10805
IONVENSNI 00905

S$SHOOV LANYILNI £0605

1¥0ddNS GNY 3ONYNILNIVIN 2050

NOILYTIVISNIINIWGINDI/ZUYMIIOS 10505
SIONEIS NOILYINSOSNI 00505

00512 98°9/8°99 98°199°€9Z L6YYLSTL 9T IveTL STIWZZL £5°E26'S) 58°€Z9°bL £6°£20°Z1 6v'S0L°LL £0°06£°Z1 S9°SYSVE

- 00°000'% 00°000°} - - - - - - (00’0001 - 00°000'%

- 00°000'L 00°000'L - - - - - - (00°000°1) - 00°000'L

- 007002291 00700249} €9°022 85 STITYL 05228'9 89'60C 0} 009169 00°0/9'9 00GLL9 00°€€0'Z 00°EEr 9

- 00°000°0F 1 00°000°0 1 009 15 00°eer'9 00°€EP'9 00°eer'9 00°€EYD 00°EEV'9 00°EEY'9 00°Eer'9 00°EEY'S

- 007000 00000 05'929 - 05°68€ - - 00°L€2 - - -

- 00°000'5L 00°000'G1 00°59L - - - 00°€8Y - 00282 - -

- 00°00Z'0L 00°00Z'0L £6'Y9€'S ST'886 - 89°'9.L'¢ - - - 00009 -
ooslee 00°00€'5Z 00°580'2C 00°580'¢C - - - - - 0081 - 00690722
0088 00005 00TLY 00Ty - - - - - 0091 - 00°96¢
00°G¥S 00°008'9} 00°552'94 00°552'9L - - - - - - - 00°552'9L
00'285'Z 00°000'8 00'8LY's 00'8LY'S - - - - - - - 00°8LY'S

- 00058 00058 - - - - - - < - -

- 00°00S 00005 - - - - - - - - -

- 00°05€ 0005 - - - - - - - - -
IONVIIVA I35ans viol TVNLOY TWNLOV IYNIoY WALV IVNLOV JvnIov TNLSY WALoY IVN1OY
Q31o3roxd 5202 a31o3roxd aiA isnsny Ane annr AV TRIdY HONYW ANVNHE3IS  ANYNNYE

5202 s202

SZ20Z 1SNONV HONOWHL 31vAd OL ¥v3A
aNNd ONILYHEALO LOR1SIa

SIONTIIANQD €008

SASNIEXS ANV IDVIUN 2dVLS 2OV0s

SISN3dX3 2 OVITIN UBANTN QYOS LOYOS
ONINIVEL NV ZONTATANOD TTIAVHL 00008

#1090V
(panuguos) :g3ISNIdX3



SASNIXI IVIOL

FDIANTS 1830 OL WIISNVHL 61609
SINIWIAOUINI TV.LIEYO 04605
AONIONLLNOD LOTrOdd L5605
S1S0D LO3rOxd HAMLO 95605

S1S0D ONIONVYNIL LOArOUd §5605

S1S00 INIWJOTANIC LOAFOUd $5605

dINOI ¥ STUNLIXIA 'FUNLINYNG LOFFOUd £5605
SLS00 NOILONYLSNOD 103r0¥d 25608
WIAOHAN! 2 NOLLISINOOVY 3LIS LOIrodd 16608

00°€ZL'E 00°005'600'E 00°2//°900°E 967112 700'C £2°969 19812 6S°6LL L95v) yovel £9°680'1
00°€2L'T 00°000°000C°€ 00°L/Z'266'T 00'/22'266'C - - - - - d
00'€2L'T 00°000'000' 00'LL2'L66'C 00°LiT'L66'E - - - - -
- 00°005'6 00°005'6 96'VE6'9 £2'969 L9604 8G°6LL L9°SPL YOPTL L9680}
- 0070056 00°005'6 96°v€6'9 £2°969 L9BLL 89'8LL L9'sYL YovTL £49680')
SONVIEVA I356na TVLOL ALY
a3L03royd 520z a3103rodd ara Lsnonvy Anr ANNRC AVIU Advndaad
$20T §20T
{00"000'055) 00°000'008 00°000°0SZ. 6g'sL9'zel) 98" e8've0'L8L) th.wﬂmﬁw.mm¢v "LSY'26T L cN.mmo.mm at-
00°000'08 00°000°00Z 00'000°062 19'€86°0! 9s '508'% 0L LIV, "L9b'6Y L 4 0Z°680'02 oL
00°000'05 00°000'002 00°000°052 L9 0 85" ‘508’7 oYL "L9V'6Y ZL" 0Z°680°0 o4
(00°000°009) 00°000°c09 - (00"009'¢0e) - (00006'561) (00°00L V6¥) 00°000°¢ve 00'00v'EVL -
(00°600°009) 00°000°009 - (00°009'c08) - (00"006'561) (00001 v69) 00°000'€VE 00'00v’sYL -
AONVYINVA i3sang Jviol VNLOY
az2103rodd sz0z Q3103roxd aia
§202 §20T lsnony Anr aNne AV AdvNyadd

§202 1SNONV HONOJYHL 31vad OL ¥v3A

(IVNNNVY) SLOIrO¥d IVLIdYD

SHANLIANIAX3 WLIdYD 00605

$334 XNVE GIINTYND 0£805
INVLIINSNOD WYHSOYd 80805

ANVLINSNOD NOLLONMLSNGD L0805

SAVINYIS TYNOISSIH0Hd 00805
#4100V

SASNIINA

SINNIATH TVLOL

SANM- NOLLOMALSNOD NO LSIAILINI 0L60Y

SNOINVTIZOSIN 0080%

INDOVIT TIVELOOH TYNOILLYN 2080%
SHINOVA AVE NIZIO 1080y
SNOILYNOQ 0080%

S=3dd ¥3sN 10¥0Y
STIDAUVHO OT1EMNd 000t

NISNQOSIM H0 3LVY1S 5020
HNNINATY TWINSWNEIAODHIINI 00208

#1200V
*SANNIAIY



£

[

/

SZ0Z 1SNONVY HONOUHL 31va OL ¥vIA

ANN4 2§28~ INNIATY TVIDI4S

[Eza27n) »1°958'0/8'S 9€'821'8/6'G LI EDE'eZe'S 59'GV6'6 LZEYO'T S6286'L 26508 SO'E0Z'VL 29v2e’9L L09v8'L €L 25 8/7'S S3ISNIJX3 TVLOL
84122} YL LEE'625'S 9E'E0L'8eS’S ST IyYy'98y’s - - - - - 90°09Z°€L - 6L°48L'ELY'S
8LL2T'L £0°649'28Y'S ST Lyp'osy's ST iyv'esy's - - - - - 90°092'€l - 61°/8L'ELY'S  YNILNIVIN 8 SNOLLYMIJO OL ¥34SNVML 0860
- 11°989'Ly L1959 LY - - - - - - - - - ONN TYHINIOS OL ¥34SNYHL 5/606
SIENLIANIEXS TYLIdVYD 00605
(00°000'6) 00°000°0% 00°000'6Y 9"'968'9€ S95v6's 1Zeh0'T G6'286'L 16°508'L S0'E0Z'Yl 95'¥96'C L0°9v8'L ¥6'¥90'C
(00°0006} 00'000°SE 00°000'7C 06'045°St LT LTEY0'T 567861 16'608°L 6'090°C 95'12Z8'L L0'9v8’L ¥6'¥90'T $334 XNvE Q314MvYNO  0€805
- - - - - - - - - - - - 3NV ONVYNILNIVIVINIWIOVYNYIN YNDIS §1805
- 00°000'SZ 00°000'6Z 95'582'LZ 00°000'8 - - - 9s'erl'e ooert's - - SHORIE- STOIANTS J3LOVHINGD 71805
- - - - - - - - - - - - ANYLTINSNOD WYHO0¥d 80808
- - - TASNNOD TYNOIOTY 20805
SHAOINGAS TYNOISSFH0¥d 00805
- 00°520'L 00'520'L - - hd hd - - - - -
- 00'g.T 00's.2 - - - - - - - - - ISNIJXT ? S3AddNS 340 80808
- - - - - - - - - - - - 180D XV4/AdOD G005
- 00°008 00°005 - - - - - - - - - ANSWLNEOAY ONY ONISILY3ATY $0805
- 00'05C 00'0ge - - - - - - - - - AMIAINAC ONY 30VLSOd 0808
- - - - - - - - - - - ONLINIMd ONY AYINOLLYLS L0g0S
3SN3dX2 301440 00808
TONVIGVA 139ana TVIOL TYALOV
a3103royd §20T Q3L03roud atA lsnonv ATne annr AV ddY HOYVIN Advn¥g3d AAVONYE #1000V
202 §20T :83ISNIJX3
86°8/0°G1L 00°000°0€Z 85'8/0'GIE'T YSOV8'LLZ'L 19'958'668 8L'GYOPZ 91'810°G, 96°65E 6V LL0Z/ T SL9v/OF o0y/e'LS LLBLLEY SINNIAIY TVLOL
- 00°000°00¥ L 00°000°00Y'L 0E'¥Z7'e62 €8'26¢'/Z 81°6¥1'9L o1'82e'29 60°'1e8'ey LL'GP8'ee 91'864°6T 00VLE'LS 1188y L8
- - 3OIAYZS LE3Q NI M34SNYIL £v60y
- 00°000'00%'} 00°000°00%'} 0E'7ZZ'e6T £8°Z6V'LZ 8L'syl'ol 91'82e'29 60°'1Z8'er LL'SP8'ET 91'854'52 00'pLE'LS 11°651' L€ SONN4 2628 NO LS3AFINI 1160¥
SNOZNY TI30SIN 00607
85'8/0°GL 00°000°056 85'8/0'696 $2919'816 8/'€9€'C/8 00°006'L 00'069°L 18'8E5'S 00's.8'e 65'886'7L - 00'092'9
- 00°000°00} 00°000°001 99°[E5'ES 0Z'682Z'L 00'006'Z 00°069'Z 18'8€5°S 00'6/8' 65°886'7} - 00'092'9 $333 UL ANV MOEE  L0v0Y
- - - - - - - - - - - - 440 MO3HO XvL INOONI 90v0r
85'8L0°G1 00°000°'05€ 85'8£0'59€ 85'8/0'69€ 85'80'69¢ - - - - - - - $334 3Lv1d ISNIOM S0¥0F
- - - - - - - - - - - - SIN3AT TVIOAdS €0voy
- 00°000'00S 00°000'00§ 00°000°00S 00°000'005 - - - - - - - 334 1DIDIL Z0v0Y
SIDAVHD ONENd  00¥01
- - - - - - - - - - - - XYL S3IVS LOLOP
SIXVL 0007
FONVRIVA i3sang Tvi0L TVNLOY #1090V
a3103royd 5202 Q3aLo3royd ata ISIANNIATY
§20C S20T lsnonvy Anr annr AV “RidY HOYYIN Advnagad ANVANYT



§20Z 1SNONY HONOJUHL 31vd OL AVIA

FONVNILNIVIN ANV SNOLLYH3dO- INNIAIY TVIO3dS

00/2LE €0°6/0786 bl €08V V86 7L 65°/01'GE 56'6L £9'vBB 2L - Sz /0L £9°50L 1Z16L 66°6L €587/ L2 SASNIAXT VLOL
00JZLE 00008 vZ 00€ISLZ 00€ISLE - - - - - - - 006812
00 IZL'E 00°008%C 00€L91C 00ELI LT B B - B - - - 00°€9'1T QNN ONILYHEAO 1O11SIQ OL ¥IISNYML 18605
- - SUIVETY VAIYD £0605
SRINLIANS XS VLAV 0060%
- 60°000°GLL 00°G00'6LL BSVEP €L 6661 ceveaZL - SZL0L 25501 1Z16L 6661 €550L
- - - - - - - - - - - - OLMN ~38MWSEIN LG80S
- 00°000'01 00°000'04 - - - - - - - - - HOLINOW INIONIJIANI IEWIEN 05805
- 00°000'00L 00°000'00L 8SVEY'S 66'61 £8'v88'L - sz L0l 89501 1Z16L 6661 €950l S334 ¥NvE QII4IIYND 08805
- 00°000'S 00°000°S 00°000'S - 00°000'G - - - - - - 34 IS LORLSIG- STOINMIS GRLOVMINOD +1805
- - - - - - - - - - - - ANVLINSNOD WY¥D0Yd 80805
- - - - - - - - - - - - INVLINSNOD NOILONYLISNOD L0805
SIOIAGSS TYNOISSEA0T4 00805
- S0SIC Y8 YL S05Le B YL - - - - - - - - -
- S0°51C Lv8 VL SOSLZLYB PL - B - - - - B . - SHIVAIH/FONYNILNIVIN S0L0G
SISO ONIGTING ONV INJg 00405
- 66°009 50609 - < - B - B - - -
- 00009 00009 - - - - - - - - - 3SN3dXA ® SAlddNS 301440 80805
ISNIIXE 301330 00€0§
SONVI™VA 139ang IVLOL TIVYNLOVY # 100V
QaLO3rCUd 5207 aaLo3roYd atA isnonv Anr annr AVIN TRidY HOUVI AMVNEEEd  ANVANYE :$ASNIAX3
s70T 5202
(8l 72z 1) €0°5/9/86 bL SZiyyoR6L ©L'99b'/8S. | 2655008 Z0BOV'ET 0L IYTHT 0026582 5/:088°9€ 10'6/5°05 08°6/6'28 BE'61L2'099'9 STNNIATN TVLOL
(8122 1) £0°6/9'£86'S ST IYv'986'S Oy IvL8vl'S | vLE9Eve 2089762 0U YTV 00'265'€2 6.°068'5E 10SI505 08'6.6'2€ Y8'069°LZ5'S
8l Izzh) €0GLOL8Y'S ST LY o8Y'S ST Ivrosr'S - B - - - 50092 €L - SLZ8L'ELF'S NIATN TVIORLS YIHLO WOMH Nt WIJISNVEL  Ov60H
- 00°000°00§ 00°000'005 §1°008'292 YLE9E' T 20°89v'€T 0LLPTYT 00'Z65'€Z 6408898 sevLee 08'6.8'LE S9'E08'S LSINAIN LL60Y
SNOINVTTIOSIA 00607
- 00°000°000'6 00°000'000°6 €102, 968, | 81269504 - - B - - - S58Z0EEL L
- 00°000'000'6 00°000'000'6 £L02L'988') | 8L'Z89'50L - - - - - - $5'820°EEL'L 34 LIHOIL Z0ovop
. §I58VAD Orand 00voy
- - - - - - E - - - - - XYL SIS LoLop
SIXVL 0010V
TONVIGVA 1iFsang TWIOL TRV #1990V
a3Lo3rodd sZoZ a3aLo3aAroUd aLix TSINNIAIN
5207 520z Lsnony Ane annr AV MY HOXYW AMYNEEId  ANYANYE



vL0ZY'8vY 71 0Zr 8y 0000026 00°000'62 - 00°000°082 00°000'01 00°000'ZE SASNIIXA WLOL
¥.°02¥ 86 ¥1°02¥'86 00°000°SC 00°000°52 - - - -
$2'027'86 $2°027'86 00°000'SZ 00°000°5Z - - - - INNH ONLLYYILO LORLSIO OL ¥IJSNvHL 18605
STUNIIANTAXE WIdVS 00608
00°000°05€ 00°000°06€ 00°000722¢ - - 00°000°082 00°000°0} 00°000'Z€
00°000'0SE 00°000'05€ 00°000'.2€ - - 00°000'082 00°000'0} 00°000'2€ [FONI/SINVYEO INFINJOTIAIA DINONODI $2805
S30INYSS TYNOISS3308d 00805
- - ASNIX3 B S3ddNS FOIHH0 80L0§
- - LSO XVA/AdOD S0£0§
- - LNIWLINYOZH ANV ONISLLYIAQY $0£0S
- - AYIAITEA ONY 3OVISOd £0€0§
- - ONILNIYd ONY A¥INOILYLS 10£0S
I5NIdX3 301930 00808
izoang VioL FECTNT]
s202 Q3aLo3rodd §202 #1900V
s20Z isnonv Anr 3anne AVA TRIdY AMYANYE :$ISNAIX3
00°000'SY 00°000'SY £5°626'6 ¥ £€°180'¢ 11°696'¢ £1°198'¢ 69220y LYS SISEY SINNIATY TVI0L
00°000°S¥ 00°000°GY £5°526'6 } €67180'e L1'596'¢ £1°198'¢ 692207 "LbS b S'L98Y
000005 00°000°SY £5'526'6 j €£°180°€ PRI €1198'E 69220 LY SI9EY ANN4 AIQ JINONODS NO LSIHIUNI §160¢
- - IOINYIS 1830 NI ¥IASNYYHL EF60F
SNO3NVITIOSIN 0060
- - - - - - - - 334 NOLLONYS 0180%
SNOILVNOG 0080%
- - - - - - - - SIXVL 00L0¥
i3sang AVIOL VALOY #100V
S20Z a3Lo3rodd aLa *SANNIATY
744 5202 isnony Ane annr AV IRy AMVNNYE

§202 1SNONY HONOUHL ALvA OL ¥VIA

ANN4d INJNdOTIAIA DINONOOT



15€6E 2L S8B0Y'E SEVEDT 7oL 68 Civ L
81'29
81'L9
8T
22 182
00'8LE
965'12¢ 16'128
00'9L
00°02
26'50L')
Loy
00'2e
00°80L'C
00'522'¢
00°005
zg'ee
00282
00'02
£6'70L'L
Z9 1022l $860'E SEVE0 | - SV iSLL
VL9
AVL]
L8
T8
00'81€
96'L2¢ 16°128
00°009
00°02
26V0L L
(oo's2)
LE°L
6L
66'62
00'804'Z
00's22'e
00°00§
25'ee
00°02
26'v0L')
6 LIE VL 5860V E BEEY6 ¢ 007000 Z& S0EL6 8
28'1€9
12’59
1Z'59
08'842
08'8.2
00°ZLE
82°01€
82018
00°0Z
£670L'L
00'804'2
00'522'e
00°005
00'552'9L
00'81¥'S
z5ee
00°000'£€
00°02
600"}
00'96€
zg'ee
VIOL GHAV. SHLLITEVIT “SISNEIXH $IASNIAXT
T EII6SY GNNd
FENEErT

TVLOL HONVYIN

ONITTOHHLIM FLVYLS

FBAOTHNR FVOIaIN

ANVYANOD FHVYOIGIN

FIAOTANA ALNDIS TVIOOS
ANYEWOD ALIMNDES TVIOOS
ONIGTOHHLIM Tvd3034
AUVNREI4-ININAVYE INIFWIHILIY
JNOD SHIIFOM

NOILLYSNIAINOD aa¥H3430
TIOHAVd

XV1 STTVS HORIE

ALsa3IM

SHOIHE—NOLLYHLSIOFE XYL SSINISNE
FOLOIHIA INLNDOIXA

HOLOZHIA IONYNIA
TVHINID-LINVLINSNOD WYHDOUd
TRJY~-IONVENSNI 341
SNYILOO3N ISV
NOILYSNIdWOD Jaxy343a
TIOHAYd

TY10L AMvugad

ONIQIOHHLIM 2LYLS
S3A0TdNT SHVOIQIN
ANVAWOD 3¥VOIQIN
FIAOTHND ALINOIS VIOOS
ANYJNOD ALRINDIS VI00S
ONITMIOHHLIM TVHE03A
AUVYNNYP~LNINAY ININSHL3N
ONIINNOODY ATHINOW
NOLLYSNIINOD G2xy3330
TIOHAVd

QaLvisossy

NI HOLYINOTVYD

¥3lvm

3lsgam

HOLOIHIA IALLNO3XT
HOLOIHIQ FONYNIL
TYHINID~LINVIINSNOD NVHOO0Ud
HOUYW~IONVENSNI 3417
HOYYW~3ONVHENSNI 2411
NOILYSNIJINOD UIxuE430
TIOHAVd

TYLOL AUYNNYT

ONIQIOHHLIM 2LYLS

FAAOTHNT TUVOITIN

ANVJINOD JHVOITaIN

FHACTANG ALRHNDOIS TVIO0S
ANVANOD ALRIND3S TVIO0S
ONITTIOHHLIM V303

dxa YIAGNIOIA-LNSWAYS INSWIFAILTH
UM H3gWIOIA~INSWAYE LNIWFALL
NOILYSNIdINOD 03NIA30
TICUAY

HOLORIQ NLNODE

HOLOZHIA AONYNIL
TYHSNIO-INYLINSNOD WvHD0dd
FONYENSNI ALITIGYT TYNOISSAH0Yd
ALNEYTT TVHENSD
AHVNEEIA-FONVENSNI 3417

S1IN3AZ 6202

NOILYSNIdINOD Q33430
TIOUAV

JdNIOD SHIHIOM

SONVHNSNI 31T QIvVd3dd

NOILdig5s3d

AUALSIDFY MOIHD

NISNOOSIM 40 31ViS

ROINMAS FNNIATH TYNBZLNI
LSMYL 33A01dNE S0 INSNWLHYLEEA
FONVAENSNI DN

1S3MalN OOVYN

NOMSOYH INVIA

ANNIAIY H0 Ld3Q NISNOISIM

ONI SONOI-YNVE SSY

SNNBATY 50 Ld30 NISNOOSIM

YINDIS

IVIONYNIH NYILNO3S
AOY® SIMIT ‘ONINNIH
1S3IMAIN OOVN
INOYSOY 3NVIQ

NISNOOSIM 40 31VLS

OIAYES INNIATH TYNHILNI
1SN¥1 IIA0TNS S0 INFNLNVYL3A
HSY SNDIMVYH
1S3MAIN OJVYN
NOXSONH 3NVIA
Lia3¥0 SINIOd —
NOZYNY-—
LIV OXLIN—-
ONI SONOI-MNYE SSY

YWOIS

TYIONYNIZ NYILAO3S
TVIONWYNIZ NYILNO3S
1S3aMAiN OOYN
NOXSOY INVId

NISNOOSIM O FLVLS

3OIANZS INNIAIY TYNUILINI

1SNl FAA0THNE 40 INANLEYEI0
LSIMAIN OOYN
NOXSOY aNVIQ

VoIS

JiAAM

IVIONYNI4 NYILNO3S
AVE NITHD ¥3A00SIa
LSIMAIN OOVYN
WOMSOY anvIa
FONVHNASNI DT
VIONYNId NVILNO3S

FOANEA

LORILSIA WNIQVLS TTYELOO0d TYNOISSII0Ud ALNNOD NMONE/AVE NITHD

20205
LoZos

60205
50805

80€05
80€05

51805
10208
20805

20208
L0Z0g
60208
L080$

80€05
80€05
0LE0S
80€05

51808
L0208
L0208

20208
10z08
60208
51805
£0805
L0805

L0208
52805

50805

INNG35Y

geoe/she
§20zZ/1e/e
$202/12/E
szoz/ie/e
sz02/iee

seoz/oze

§20Z/0L/E
Sz0z/ie
§20Z/LIE
SToTILE
S20Z/LIE

$202ISHT
seoe/eere
szoz/ieeie
seoz/Lzee
§ToTIeTere

§202/0272

§eo02/0Le

5202/
§202Z/L2
S2OT/LIT

§20Z/51/1
seoenen
S20Z/1E/L
S2OZIVT/L
frdedz

STOTIVLL

§202/0L/L
§20Z/01/1
S2o0Z/0LL
§202/04/1
§20zT/0M/L
§202/17t

HIva

12341Q

L1o3dia
1o3yi1a
16604
08604
68601

Loz

1o3xia
88601
48601
98601
§8601

103¥Ig

103¥iIg
103910
8601
€8601
28601

Lozwia

Loaya

18.01
080}
61601

Lo3¥ja

1oz3xia

1o3uia
8L601
41601

Lozdia

9L604
§1804
L1601
€4601
2is0l
19601
1-pe

#WSTRS

[O1/



2E'282 91 S8°60V'E YSIES L - €6°062 L]
9L°00b
9400}
¥8°0EY
$80eY
00°'LLy
¥6°Z8% 95°28F
00'Ze
00°009
89'8lL'e
00°02
£600L'L
00°80L'2
00'622'e
00°005
69've
0002
2BY0L'L
90P¥8'E6Z  OL VLS SEPS0L 06°000082 S6¥LSL
JANL:]
LV19
iee
2T'L8T
00'gle
96°12E 16128
0002
6oLl
5T
oL
00°2¢
00°000'082
00702
£6V0L'L
00°80L'2
00°5Z2'e
00005
25ee
00°€8y
00°02
16°p0L'L
€105V 22 SE60v e G566 | G0G00'0F EC LIV L
02695
128
JAVL]
T2
TTL8T
00'gle
96°12¢ 16128
sv'e
0025
00°2€2
0002
2640L't
00'80L'Z
00's22'e
00°005
25'ee
00'000°0}
0002
£6'V0L'L
WIGL TI0HAYd SIIFEYT “SESNIdXT =EEEE]

¥ SI3SSY aNnd
[EREELRS

Tviod annr

ONITIOHHLIM 31LYLS
FIA0THIND HVOITIN
ANYAROD IHUVOITIN
FIA0TENT ALIENOIS TVIO0S
ANYJNOD ALRINDIS TVIO0S
ONIGTOHH.LIM Tvy303d
AVN~LINIWAYL LINIFWIHLLFY
Allsgam

ONILNNODOY ATHINOW
Ligny IvNNNY
NOILYSNIJINOD 03xd343a
TICHAYd

HOLOINIA BALLNODE
HOLOZHIA JONYNIA
AYHIANIO—LNVYLINSNOD WvHOO¥d
AINM—FONVAENSNI 3417
NOILYSNIINOD Q3HN3H3Q
TIOUAVd

TVLOL AVIN

ONIQTOHHLIM 31V1S
FFACTHNT FUVOIaaW
ANVAINOD IHVYOIQ3N
FIAOIAINS ALRINOES TYIO0S
ANVANOD ALRINDAS TVIO0S
ONITIOHHLIM TvH3a3d
V- LNINAV LINSWIHILTY

NOILYSNAdWOD aFRRzARA
TIOYAV

HILYM

3SN3dX3 ONILIIW
3LsE3am

ONIGNNA 1dvda

NOILVSNIJINOD Qax¥y3430
TIO¥AYd

HOLOZHIQ FNLNOIXI

HOLOTHIA SONYNIA
IYHINIO-LNVLINSNOD WYHDOUd
BNNP-IONVUNSNI 34N
SNOLLYLLOD3AN 3sva
NOILYSN3dWOD Q3x¥343a
TIOYAYd

V101 Tiudy

ONITIOHHLIM 3LYLS
FHAOTHNT IHYDIQ3N
ANYJNOD IHVYOIa3nN
TIAOTANG ALRINOTS TVID0S
ANVEINOD ALIHNDES TVIO0S
ONITIOHHLIM V303
HOUYW-LNINAYD INJNTILLZA
FOVLSOd

aLsaam

I3SNNOD o0
NOLLYSNIdWOD 033430
TIOHAVd

HOLOZHIA IALLNDAXS
HOLOZIIQ FONYNIA
IVHINIO-INVLINSNOD WYHO0Hd
AYIN-ZONVENSNI 341

SLHVA OWYAM-SLINIAS 5202
NOLLYSNIJWOD 034u3430
TIOHAV

NOLIEI$Hd

YALSIOIY MOTHD

NISNOOSIM H0 VLS

ADIAHES ANNIATY TYNIILNI
1SNYL FFA0THINZ HO ININIHYL3A
ONI SONOI-MNVE SSY

HSY SNDIMYH

NITTY NOSHYI NOLAITO

LSIMQIN OOVN

WOXSOY INVIT

YINOIS

AVIONYNID NYILNO3S
1SaMAIN OOYN
INOMSOH 3NVIQ

NISNOOSIM 40 3LVLS

3DIANIS INNIAZT TYNHILNI
LSNYL 33A0THNS 20 INIFNLHVAIQ

1s3MAiN OOYN
WOMSOY INVIG
LHVYWIVYAM-
SUDAOV AVE NIZHO—~
ONI SONOI-YNVE SSY

dHOD AVE NITUS WA LYIUD IONARIBIXE
LSIMAIN OOYN
WOMSOH BNVIQ

YOS

IVIONYNId NVILNO3S
ADVT R SIMIT ONINNIY
LSIMAIN OOVYN
WOMSOY 3NVIQ

NISNOOSIM H0 ZLVLS

FIAYTS INNIAZH TYNNEILNI

18Nd1 FFA0NHNE JO INSNLEYE30
sdsn—

ONI SONOI-XNVE S8V

08 'SV JANVA

1S3aMAIN COVN

WONMSC¥ ANVIG

YNDIS

TVIONYNIA NYLLNO3S
AVE NIFHO YIA0ISIA
LSIAMAIN OOVN
WOMSOY INVIQ

LORILSIA WNIQVLS TTvE.LOO0H TYNOISSIJ08d ALNNOD NMOUS/AVE NIIHO

20208
10208
50205
8009

10808
10805

§1805
40205

20208

Lozos

60205

01€08
01e0§
80£05

52805

51805
L0208
20805

20209

10205

60208
£0808
8008
£080%

51808
L0208
§2808

STOTISHY
§202/0e/9
$202/02/9
G202/42/9
§202/L2/9
520211218
$202/L219

§202/0L/9
5202/EL/8
§20Z/EL/9
§20zZ/EL/8

S202/GLiS
SCOT/LE/S

§202/0e/S
5202/08/5

s20e/0218
QioA

5202/8L/S
Se0Z/8LIS
S20z/8L/S

§202Z/0L/S
S202/2/s
fravdrdig
§202/2iS
[rdv4rdi

SZOZ/OEY

S202/SHY
SToz/oe

szozioziy
frav4i-ivig
STOZI8LY
520Z/8L/Y

§202/0L1y
rdvizig
S2OTIvIY
seoT/viy
se0eiviy

INMOSOY  FIva

Lozdia
1o03¥I0
LO3uIG
L3041
oiotL
Sl0HL
oL

FHEL

- ELOLE

zioLtL
32,193

Loz3dia

103u1a
LOozda

004
60041

103¥ig
8001 1-900L1
S0014
001}
€001L

103¥ig
200t
LoOLE
000iL
66601

Lo3y1Q

Lo=A10
LOzda

1o3dia
86601
L6601
96601

1o3x3a
56601
6601
£6601L
26601

#MO3HD




YTEPLESY  168906C  S90£80L \rosy'ize 18'29¢'98
LL'8E9'C) SLSLY'E 9E 756 - 99°'802 8
849
81'29
zTL82
zz'i82
00'8ie
96°12¢ 16'128
(co'oy)
ST'986
oL'psL'L
Sevy
00'2e
00'804'Z
00'see'e
00°005
69'vE
s912L'L
Y6GLLCE 9582y SLEL9] - £9'808'Z
04'659
118
JAN-]
2T'L82
2Ti8e
00'81€
96'12¢ 16'128
¥9'€2L'Y
00'L
0£2
8262
05°01
00'ze
00'80L'2
00's22'¢
00°005
05'68¢
69V
00°02
26'¥0L'L
Viol TI08AYd SALAEVT SISNIIX3 SISNFaXT
¥ 513557 “aNn4
7F 5345

IVIOL LA
IVLCL Lsnony

TIAOTGING IUVOIAEN
ANVGNOD 3¥VOIaN
FAIA0TAND ALRINOIAS WVID0S
ANYSNOD ALRINDES VIDOS
ONIGIOHHLIM Y3034
ATNP-ANINAYS INSWNTHILE
NOILYSNIdINOD Qaxy343a
LIGNY TYNNNY

TIOHAVd

HOLYINOTVO

Alisaam

HOLOZHIQ FALLNOEXT
¥OLOIHIQ IONYNIA
TYHINID-LINV.LINSNOD WYHOOUd
UIENILJIS-IONVHENSNI 341
TICHAV

IVLOL ATNM

ONITTIOHHLIM JLVLS
FHAOTING SWvDIaIN
ANVJNOD AVOIGIN
33A0dNT ALRIND3S VIO0S
ANYJWOO ALRINDES VIO0S
ONITIOHHLIM TR0
INAM-LNSWNAYL INSWHLLTS
TIOHAVd

HILVAA

IALYMm

ISNIdX3 ONILIIN
IOVLSOd

JLisgam

HOLOIUIA BALLNODE
¥OLOTHIQ FONVYNIL
TYEINIO-LINY.LINSNOD WYDO0Ud
TASNNOD YOO
LSNONY-IONVUNSNI 3417
NOILYSNIdWOD a3uN3430
TIOHAVd

WOLLdlIos3a

AILSIOFY MOTHD

FOIAMAS INNIATY TYNEZLNI
18NYL 33A0NENS 40 INIANLHYVEIQA
1S$3MAIN OOYN
NITIV NOSHYTNOLIO
WOYSOY 3NVIQ

NO2VINY-
ON! SONCI-XNYE SSY

YNDIS
TYIONVNIH NYILAO3S
WOXSOH INVIQ

NISNOOSIM 40 3LVLS

ADIAYAS ANNIATY TYNSEILN|
18NHL F3A0THINT 40 ININLEYE30
NOXSOY 3NVIC

AV O3~
LAHYNTYM~
SUINOVd AvE NIZHD- -
Sdsn—-
ONI SONOI-XNYE SSY

YADIS
'0'S ‘TILSVO BANVA
TYIONWNIZ NYILNO3S
LS3MAIN OOVYN
WOXsOY aNvia

HOANAIA

LORILSIA WNIAVLS TIVELO04 TYNOISSTH0Ud ALNNOD NMONS/AVE NITHD

20208
L0205
60208
10805
80E05
80€05

51805
L0208

20205
1azos

80205

0LE0S
0LE0s
0LE0s
£0808
80805

$1805
£0805
Lozos

[sle}e)

g202/s1/e
§202/1E/8

Se0erees
§202/22/8

§202/02/8

§20zZ/01/8
szoe/e/e
Seoeie/e

§202/1€/L

SZ0ZISLIL
SZOZILE/L
5202/52/L
pioA

STOZ/ITL

S20Z/0L/L
SZOTILLIL
SZOZ/L UL
S2OZ/LVL
S2OZ/LUL
Fiva

103u10
L03d1q

0oLl
620L}

Lo3dig

Lo3dia
82011
L2011

Lo3Mia

Lozdia
Lo3wa
92oLL
52220

L03dI0

FRe=r]le]
LzoLl
0zoLL
81011
8L0LL
ITIAS




DIRECTOR’S REPORT
SEPTEMBER 22, 2025

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

- Fund Statement

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

- District User Fee Fund Statement

MAINTENANCE MONITORING

- 2" Quarter Maintenance report

2025 QUARTERLY MEETING DATES (held at 2:00pm)

-  December 8, 2025

OTHER MATTERS




821127718

8211718

90'228'CLY'T
(g9ov¥'L12'L)

(01L°049'vbY)

/6°G8G'CLE'E

16°685'2.€'e

18'G16'/26C

2e'58.°082

SS'0EL'LY9'T

aNnd

INIWJOTaAId JINONOD3

aNVv

SLIN3AL TVIO3dS

8Y'822 L9S'L 9/°810'VED'6E 25856 8LV LY
87822 /9G'/ 9/°810VEQ'6E 25°866'8LY LY
{eL¥00'9e6°04) (eL'v00'9e60L)
g£LorL'ze 6.'896'50S'C
(00°980°Z26) (11'8L1'e22) (6Lv+9'95£°T)
(00°059'S1) (007059's1)
00°059'st 00°059'S1L
£6°/62'98€'00L (zz L62'98¢€'001) (0070)
(st'£86'968'16) 60°262'LYS'0S) $Z'6£9'50C'8S
ZyIro'lee’8ee 10°229'1E8 12'6LL98L'2v2
928209 14'820'9
95°051°00€ 96°051'00€
9¥'€8¢'L66'GEZ 9'€8¢€'L66'GEL
00°000'008 00°000°008
ov0/2'eri'L 0¥ 0.LZ'erl’L
00'8€8°'L6 G/'€65'928 8ETYE'0PS'Y
16'859°vEY'OVL 0LyLE'18E'IGE S 1 ¥'266 00€
GL'G/8'vob'e €0°G91'¥56'81 29'065'GEL'CT
00191212
G8'SEY'[26'901 S8°SEY'L26'901
SS0EL'LY9'T
88'129'250'L 88°129'L50'L
6¥'SPO'SHL'T 6Y'SYO'SYL'C
$8°6¥9'/69'6 $8'599'/69'6
27'€8L'696'CYL 00°000'000°C4 22°€8.'696'vS1
annd aNnd IVIOL
FONVYNIINIVIN yi:14
aNv
"NOILVYSd0
Scoc/ie/8

JONV1vVE ONNd ANV SESNIdXE INNIAZY
SANN4 INNIAZY TVIOAdS

FONVIVE MNVE

LSIHUILIN! 3NHOIV ONIMNVE FTEVYAIZOTIH SINNODJY
HIISNVHL

¥FISNVHL ONILVHILO

3LVLS FTgVAIFOTH SINNODOOVY

SANN NIIMLIE INA ST MNYE

SANNZ ¥3IHLO WO¥S siqeked/os) S100V

puny urpm sjqeAed/IIEVAIZOZY SINNODOY
SHORIE—TTEVYAIZOTY SINNOJOY

SANNS INIVIN/HTH0~- WYL ITEVAVASINNCDIIY
INNIAIY G330

XV.L STIVS F1GVAIZOTY SINNOJIVY

HUIASNYHL

MNVE/HD-TTEVAVd SINNOJDY

LISNVYL NI SLISO430

AHOLNIAN]

3ONVIVE 13N

IvioL

$33d4 MNVE ¥3H10

SISNILXT ITWIEN

INIVIA ONY ¥dO

ALRINO3S

P9 S33-4 MNvE a3AVND

313 OAYS TYNOISTZIOUL/LSOD MOE
SFUNLIANIdXT

Lol

1S3HIINI

334 NOILONVYS
Xv1s3vs

SINIAF VIOIdS

440 MO3HD XV1L INODNI
SIS FTINMORIE
S31V1d 3ISNI0N
XYL 1IN0

ANNIAIN

AINOS

1-2



DISTRICT USER FEE

8/31/2025

DISTRICT USER FEE
REIMBURSEMENT USER FEE COLLECTED

SUBTOTAL

TRANSFER IN O/M

INTEREST PAID
TOTAL INTEREST

TOTAL REVENUE

NET REVERSALS
BANK FEES
REIMBURSEMENT USER FEE ISSUED
BANK FEES REIMBURSED
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
TOTAL EXPENSES

AVAILABLE BALANCE

BANK BALANCE

DUE TO THE TEAM
DEPOSIT IN TRANSITS
REFUNDS TO BE ISSUED
DUE FROM O AND M

PROJECT

PHASE 2

32,552,125.00
17,415,400.00

49,967,525.00

211,363.83
2,166,717.44

2,368,081.37

52,335,606.37

387,021.48
17,415,400.00

28,935,505.98

46,737,927.46

5,5697,678.91

5,697,678.91

5,697,678.91

/-3




2025
Quarterly
Maintenance
Report

Quarter 2
June 30, 2025

/)~




Maintenance Report
Quarter 2 (April 01 — June 30, 2025)

CMMS System Totals:
Demand Maintenance Work Orders: 479 Completed Work Orders

Average Time Spent per DM Work Order: 2.16 Hours
Preventative Maintenance Work Orders: 577 Completed Work Orders
Average Time Spent per PM Work Order: 2.23 Hours

CMMS System Anticipated Preventative Maintenance:
Preventative Maintenance Scheduled for Next Quarter: 710 Work Orders

Quarter 2 Projects:

In Quarter 2, The NFL Draft took place and was a huge success for not only
the NFL but our entire community. The team locker room project continued
as scheduled. Numerous Fiscal ’26 budget-approved projects were started,
and some completed. Examples of some of those projects and additional

work are listed below.

e Preparations for the NFL Draft were in full swing the month of April.

e Clean up and any repairs from the NFL Draft were on-going.

e The second segment of a multi-year roof replacement project

continued.

A multi-year project to upgrade aging elevators continued.

Items from the 2024 Sigma assessment were worked on.

Pressure washed concourses and blew down stadium bowl.

Bowl restoration projects progressed on schedule.

Window cleaning and high dusting in Atrium were completed.

Level 4 Super Suite windows were replaced (9 total).

West chiller compressor was replaced.

Lombardi Clock was inspected and repaired.

Boiler breeching was replaced in the North Loft.

A new thermal expansion tank was installed for Team Dining,

Players, and Staff Locker Room areas.

e Most of the rusted metal trench drain covers were replaced with an
uncorrupt able plastic material in the SEZ.

e Concession and pantry equipment was inspected and PM’d.

) )-S5




Preventative maintenance of HVAC and other equipment continued as
scheduled.

Patching and painting projects were ongoing.

Carpets were cleaned in various areas throughout the building.

Grease hoods were cleaned in concessions, clubs, and SEZ.

Several Level 1 Facilities employees retired this quarter while others
were hired to replace retirees and were trained and continue to be
trained.

Next Quarter:

In the 3™ quarter we will shift our efforts to getting ready for the football
season and preparing the stadium for several fans. The team locker room
project will be completed just in time for the season to ramp up. A sample of
on-going projects along with other routine work planned for Quarter 3 is
listed below.

Items from the 2024 Sigma list will be completed and worked on.
Trench drains in the concourses and seating areas of the SEZ will be
cleaned.

Bowl restoration projects will wrap up for the season.

Elevator projects will continue and some completed.

Emergency evacuation systems will be tested.

Preventative maintenance will be performed on all concession
equipment.

All plumbing fixtures throughout the stadium will be checked and
repaired as needed.

FAA lighting upgrade.

Rusted metal trench drain covers will continue to be replaced with an
uncorrupt able plastic material in the SEZ.

Electrical rooms will be cleaned.

Floor drains in 1919 Kitchen & Tap and the 4% floor kitchen will be
cleaned out.

Patch and paint projects will continue throughout the building.
Preventative maintenance will continue on various HVAC and other
equipment per schedule.

Several new Facilities employees will continue to learn and be trained
especially as we get into the football season.

-




250

200 T

150 +

100 -

50 -

Completed Demand Maintenance
Work Orders per Month

203

151

Apr-25 May-25

125

Jun-25




Break Down of DM Work Orders by Work Type

Plumbing
11%

Painting
17%

Concession/Kitchen
Equipment
6%

Cleaning
2%

Electrical
9%

Maintenance
45%

axt




Completed Preventative Maintenance

Work Orders per Month

250

200 {—

100 -

50 -

- 164

191




Break Down of PM Work Orders by Work Type

Concession/Kitchen
Euipment
12%

Plumbihg
3%

Painting
4%

Carts & Lifts

Maintenance 2%

13%

Cleaning
12%

Electrical
19%

(/-/D




Preventative Maintenance by Work Type for Next Quarter

Concession/Kitchen
Euipment
15%

Plumbing
5%

Painting
3%

Carts & Lifts

Maintenance
1%

13%

Cleaning
12%

Electrical
11%

s




 Packers

item

Item

] Sigmam I

item Category

2024 Sigma Site Observations

Loration Description

cal

Keywaord Assigned

Date
Completed

Stlcker

Section 6418
SEction 6438

Sectlon 672

Page 1 of 10




2024 Sigma Site Observations

v _ _ — N . —
E - Assigned
i Level Keyword
ftem ftem item Category Y MU 0 Completed

flohnny Blood k66
8y Room 4037

52572
AS 5/25/2025
X S5/25/20
"5/35/2035

BWEII repaired, mo'i;ture (
1/20/2025 | reappeared, further work
needed

/13/20
6/11/2025

Concourses Club Level GEDnot;ance 5060 Rust and water staining
Caneourses: ading: Dock: rvice irdsihesting “6/11/2005;
MIIIer Lite Deck Drain grate corroded 5/30/2025 Getting replaced 2026

: ; Jos ey the

ro'pe broke

Loose cables

Concourses [ section 104 Men's Out | 100 Corroding flashing Painting

Page 2 of 10

1713




~ Packers

Item

Slgma

item

Item Category

2024 Sigma Site Observations

Location Level Description Keyward to

Assigned

Date
Completed

Corroding embeds and conduit - expansion

S,
JOInt ln bowl ealant

Section 132 - Fleat Farm
Gate mezz walkway deck

trolioint;

Deteriorated sealant

Corrosion

nting.

osloniz=
Metal pan and steef corraslon Painting

Page 3 of 10




2024 Sigma Site Observations

- CDNCDUrSes.
Concourses

Bird:controlifallin
Metal pan and steel corrosion Palntin CITY
teel corrodin T
Steel corraded Paintin cry
¢ Painthi

Concourses Section 6445 600 fallure Corrosion ov 5/30/2025 Trial on 7th

Seetian:67E
128 32 Concourses Sectlon 680

; (oncolrse: i
Concourses | Section 694
2 Cohchlrsesss: :Section:7375 Men';
Concourses Section 7435/7455 700

Ce||ing tlle stalned
nt:peellngatsealant
Blo gical growth at flange over or
window

Cleaning

5/26/2025

Concourses

“Elettrica
Electrical

134

Brick facade damaged Masonry ow
Elactrical Elt
Electrical

ex condul:darmage:
Conduit corroding

RStopmissi
Open junction box Electrlcal
Openjunction b Electrical

Section 129 Men's
Bathroom

100 Open junction box Electrical g

Sealant falllr\g

Atrium Roof Mechanical Roof Damaged brick Masonry w
Room South

Sealantifailing
Gate bent
“Flashing:damage:

Page 4 of 10




2024 Slgma Site Observations

Assigned Date
to Completed

Packers ~ Sigma
Itemn item \tem Category i Description Keyward

#
Sealant

Corrosiol
Electrlcal

Metal was treated for rust

5/22,
/22/2025 and recoated

6/12/2025

600 Luvel Atrlum

Interiar Elevator Lobby

Americ;n Family
Entrance

Intertor

172

Interior Finishes

m : Zsonry.
Interfor Roam 349 Mortar cmcklng Masonry | CW

Page S of 10




2024 Sigma Site Observations

~ Packers  Sigma
item Item Category Loration ipti Keyword

Assigned Date
Completed

Section 136 Women's
Bathroom

interior Missing sealant Sealant

South Endzone 800
Vestlbule

Intertor
Interio

Interlor
{hterior:
Interior

Drywall damage Finishes

Slite'4018
Suite 4024

Suite 6008
Sulteis028
Sulte 6040

| as |

i Highi
Clean sun shade

hifightriminotflish
CanJl ht rim not flush

___]s

Sulte 6050

Women's Bathroom by
Sulte 5050

Stained ceIIlng tile

600 Level East
600:teveliEa
700 Level

Speaker plate not fully secured

Sign falling down
atardama;

Section 10
212 14 Miscellaneous ection 103 Women's 100 Concrete cracking
Bathroom

Miller Light Deck Men's
Bathroom
“Suite402
600 Levei East_
600:LevalNor
600 Leve! North
600:LavaliNartheast
600 Level Northeast
600/ Level:Northea

214 34 Plumbing

400 Faucet corroslon

Unsealed holes in parapet
Condiit'corrading and;deteriorating. =
Membrane crackin
iplate pullihg from:membrane:

Page 6 of 10

1117




2024 Sigma Site Observations

Packers  Sigma

ftemn item Item Category Location Deseription Keyward Assigned Date

to Completed

600 Level Northeast
600:LéveliNorthaa
600 Level Northwest

Atrium Roof Machanical
Room South

Page 7 of 10

[/-0E




2024 Slgma Site Observations

~ Packers  Sgma ] i e na
- Assigned Date
i Description ¢
Item item item Category Location criptior eyward 10 Completed

Concrete

Concrete

Corrosion

7/1/2025

post at later date

Bolt nut
Baltnuth

6/15/2025

Paint peeling . ] Painting 6/15/2025
rrosion:atbase:of gate arm post EPainting =74/202
Paint peeling Painting 6/15/2025

Paint:damage iinting 71/202
Lot striping fading Painting
aihtipeeling Painting
Paint peeling Paintin
lalt-crackin sph
Asphalt cracking

6/15/2025

Page 8 of 10

[/-77




" Packers

Item

Sigma
{tem

Item Category

Location

2024 Sigma Site Observations

Assigned
Keyword to Completed

Level
No Picture

NE:Picture:

Painting

Corrosion
Cotrosion 15/45/20:
5/15/2025

Corrosion

Page 9 of 10

))-

D0




Packers

ftem
#

338

Sigma

2024 Sigma Site Observations

As5igned Date
Completed

item item Category Location tevel Description Keyword
i

Notes

Corrod d
Lotl/Armed Forces Dr rroding bollards and sealant 7/1/2025 Bollards are finished, sealant
det is needed
T ’ —

Repaired by Central

late 2024
io

7Vertlcal étair W-Floor 6 6/12/2025

Page 10 of 10




